e N

Warrenville Public Library District

28W751 Stafford Place, Warrenville IL 60555-3002 « 630/393-1171 warrenville.com

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Wednesday, June 15, 2022, 7:00 p.m.
Location: Library Meeting Room

Special Meeting Procedures because of COVID-19:

* Masks are recommended, but not required.

» Because of social distancing measures, the number of people who may
gather at the Library may be limited, making in-person attendance
available on a first-come, first-served basis.

e The meeting will be broadcast live online at:
https://usO2web.zoom.us/j/87362469620. The public may ailso listen to the
meeting by calling 312-626-6799 and entering the Meeting ID number
873 6246 9620. (There is no participant ID or password.)

e Public comments may be shared in person at the meeting or emailed to
trustees@warrenville.com. Please use the subject line to indicate the email
is a public comment for the Board Meeting. Emailed comments will be
read during the meeting if they:

o Include the commenter's first and last name
o Arereceived at the above email address prior to the meeting's
start time.
o Are no more than 500 words in length and
o Are free of any abusive or obscene language.
While the Board appreciates all questions and comments, they will not
respond at the meeting, but may choose to do so at a later time.

AGENDA

1. Callto order

2. Roll Cdll (Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren)
a. Approve Remote Attendance and Participation, if needed (ACTION)

3. Approval of the agenda (ACTION)

Trustees may request to remove any items from the consent or regular agenda at this fime.
Discussion only items may also be added to the regular agenda at this fime.

4. Presentations
5. Public comments
6. Correspondence

P-3. a. Email from Brady Mullican (suggestion: blood drive)

7. Consent Agenda (ACTION)
P-4........... a. Approve Minutes of the May 18, 2022 Committee of the Whole Meeting
pP.7 b. Approve Minutes of the May 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting

p.12......... c. Receive and file Financial Report for May



T O

T T DT

T T

.20......... g, Approve Master Services Agreement and Statement of Work from Sikich

LLP for Fiscal Year 2022 Audit

.31 e. Adopt Working Budget for FY2023
f.  Authorize preparation of Tentative Budget & Appropriation Ordinance
8. Regular Agenda
<45 ... a. Approve payments for the period of May 19-June 15, 2022 (ACTION)
.48 ......... b. Approve tfransfer of funds (ACTION)
9. Unfinished Business
10. New Business
.49 ......... a. Review IMRF Early Retirement Incentive cost proposal (ACTION)
.50......... b. Accept proposal from Gallagher Insurance and authorize Library Director
to proceed with Library Insurance Risk Agency membership (ACTION)
51 C. Approve revised Employee Handbook: Annual Leave Policy (ACTION)
54 ... d. Approve revised Employee Handbook: Sick Leave Policy (ACTION)
.57 ...l e. Rescind Employee Handbook: Paid Time Off Policy (ACTION)
.58......... f.  Approve revised Employee Handbook: Paid Holidays and Floating
Holidays Policy (ACTION)
.61 ...l g. Request to remove iPads from Youth Services Area {discussion only)
-63..11. Director's Report
a. Status of COVID-19 Paid Leave
.66 ..12. Department Head Reports

- 77 ..13. President’s Report

a. Next meetings or events

.79 .. 14. Treasurer's Report

15. Secretary's Report
a. Report on Trustee Development Workshops
16. Committee Reports
17. Trustee Comments
18. ltems for information and/or discussion (No Action)

- 80 ..19. Closed session as allowed by 5 ILCS 120/2(c)(1) for the purpose of the

“appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal
of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body,
including hearing testimony on o complaint lodged against an employee of the
public body or against legal counsel for the public body to determine its
validity.” (Director's Evaluation)

20. Discussion/action resulfing from the above closed session (Changes to Director's
Compensation) (ACTION)

21. Adjournment (ACTION)

Warrenville Public Library District 6/15/2022 Regular Board Meeting Agenda, page 2



e

Warrenville Public Library District

28W751 Stafford Place, Warrenville IL 60555-3002 630/393-1171 « warrenville.com

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Wednesday, June 15, 2022, 7:00 p.m.
Location: Library Meeting Room

Special Meeting Procedures because of COVID-19:

* Masks are recommended, but not required.

* Because of social distancing measures, the number of people who may
gather at the Library may be limited, making in-person attendance
available on a first-come, first-served basis,

* The meeting will be broadcast live online at.
h’r’rps://uso2web.zoom.us/j/87362469620. The public may also listen to the
meeting by calling 312-626-6799 and entering the Meeting ID number
873 6246 9620. (There is ho participant ID or password.)

* Public comments may be shared in person at the meeting or emailed to
trustees@warrenville.com. Please use the subject line to indicate the email
is a public comment for the Board Meeting. Emailed comments will be
read during the meeting if they:

o Include the commenter’s first and last name
o Arereceived at the above email address prior to the meeting's
start time.
o Are no more than 500 words in length and
o Are free of any abusive or obscene language.
While the Board appreciates all questions and comments, they will not
respond at the meeting, but may choose to do so at alater time.

AGENDA

1. Callto order

2. Roll Cadll (Trustees DuRocher, Lezon, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren)
a. Approve Remote Attendance and Participation, if needed (ACTION)

3. Approval of the agenda (ACTION)

Trustees may request to remove any items from the consent or regular agenda at this fime.
Discussion only items may also be added fo the reguiar agenda af this time.

4. Presentations
5. Public comments
6. Correspondence
a. Email from Brady Mullican ([suggestion: blood drive)
/. Consent Agenda (ACTION)
a. Approve Minutes of the May 18, 2022 Committee of the Whole Meeting
b. Approve Minutes of the May 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting
C. Receive and file Financial Report for May

-1-



8.

9.

10.

11.

12.
13.

14.
15.

16.
17.

18.
19.

20.

21.

Warrenville Public Library Distict

d. Approve Master Services Agreement and Statement of Work from Sikich
LLP for Fiscal Year 2022 Audit

e. Adopt Working Budget for FY2023
f.  Authorize preparation of Tentative Budget & Appropriation Ordinance
Regular Agenda
a. Approve payments for the period of May 19-June 15, 2022 (ACTION)
b. Approve transfer of funds (ACTION)
Unfinished Business
New Business
Q. Review IMRF Early Retirement Incentive cost proposal (ACTION)

b. Accept proposal from Gallagher Insurance and authorize Library Director
to proceed with Library Insurance Risk Agency membership (ACTION)

C. Approve revised Employee Handbook: Annual Leave Policy (ACTION)
d. Approve revised Employee Handbook: Sick Leave Policy (ACTION)

€. Rescind Employee Handbook: Paid Time Off Policy (ACTION)

f

Approve revised Employee Handbook: Paid Holidays and Floating
Holidays Policy (ACTION)

g. Request to remove iPads from Youth Services Area (discussion only)
Director's Report

Q. Status of COVID-19 Paid Leave
Department Head Reports
President's Report

a. Next meetings or events
Treasurer's Report
Secretary’s Report

Q. Report on Trustee Development Workshops
Committee Reports
Trustee Comments
ltems for information and/or discussion (No Action)

Closed session as allowed by 5 ILCS 120/2(c){ 1) for the purpose of the
“appointment, employment, compensation, discipline, performance, or dismissal
of specific employees of the public body or legal counsel for the public body,
including hearing testimony on g complaint lodged against an employee of the
public body or against legal counsel for the public body to determine its
validity.” (Director’s Evaluation)

Discussion/action resulting from the above closed session (Changes to Director’s
Compensation) (ACTION)

Adjournment (ACTION)

6/15/2022 Regular Board Meeting Agenda, page 2

~2-



CORRESPONDENCE 6.
Email from Brady Mullican

Correspondence received:

From: Brady Mullican
Sent: Monday, May 30, 2022 11:32 AM
To: Trustees trustees@warrenville.com

| hope that this message finds you well. | am writing to ask if the Warrenville Public Library District has
any interest in hosting a blood drive in the near future. Our nation is currently in the middle of the worst
shortage of blood in over a decade, one so bad the Red Cross is calling it a crisis. Hospitals across the
country are having to ration what little blood they have access to, and doctors and nurses are being
forced to make the impossible decision of which patients should receive lifesaving transfusions over
others. | believe that Warrenville Public Libraries can help end this crisis by hosting blood drives and
encouraging members of the community to donate. If Warrenville would have any interest in hosting
blood drives, please contact your local blood donation center to schedule a drive. They would be happy
to facilitate a blood drive at no cost whatsoever to the library or the county. | hope that you will
consider what I have said and that you will continue to flourish.

Response sent:

From: Trustees <trustees@warrenville.com>
Sent: Wednesday, June 1, 2022 9:51 AM

To: Brady Mullican

Cc: Paul Dobersztyn <paul@warrenville.com>
Subject: Re: Library Board of Trustees submission

Thank you for your suggestion. | will share this with the Board at its next meeting and have copied our
Public Service Manager, Paul Dobersztyn, on this email so his team can discuss the possibility of hosting
a blood drive.

Sandy Whitmer, Library Director on behalf of
Warrenville Public Library District Board of Trustees

-3-



CONSENT AGENDA 7a.
Approve Minutes (May 18, 2022 Committee of the Whole)

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
Library Board of Trustees Commiittee of the Whole Meeting
Wednesday, May 18, 2022, 4:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order - Trustee DuRocher called the meeting to order at :00 p.m.

2. Roll Call

ATIENDING: Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren

ABSENT: Trustee Lezon

STAFF ATTIENDING: Library Director Sandy Whitmer, Assistant to the Director Jackie
Davis, Public Services Manager Paul Dobersztyn, Marketing Specialist Kathy Gaydos,
IT Associate Duncan Jones, Acquisitions and Cataloging Manager MaryKellie
Marquez -

a. Approve Remote Attendance and Participation ~ no requests for remote
attendance and participation were received

3. Public Comments - none

4. Review of the second draft of the FY23 Working Budget & Benefit Policy
Recommendations

Trustee DuRocher thanked Director Whitmer for all her hard work on the budget.

Director Whitmer reviewed her recommendations as outlined in her May 10 and
May 18 memos.

SALARIES

* 4% cost of living increase for all staff plus merit increase of up to 2%
depending on each employee’s overall performance rating.
Increasing the vacant shelver position from 16 to 20 hours per week.

e Adding 5 hours per week to an existing employee to teach computer classes,
many in Spanish.

* Adding a full-time Human Resources Manager

¢ Adding a full-time Graphic Designer

HEALTH INSURANCE

* Recommendations will go into effect for 1 /1/23 renewal

e Premium sharing with the library paying 90% of the premium based on the
lowest cost plan for medical, vision and dental for the employee.

e Premium sharing for spouse/child/family coverage with the library paying 50%
of the premium based on the lowest cost plan,

* Eiminating the employee Health Savings Account contribution.




ANNUAL LEAVE

e Eliminate the Paid Time Off Policy for part-time employees and include them
in the Annual Leave Policy. She reviewed the proposed earning rate
schedule for managers and other employees.

SICK LEAVE

* Add asick leave benefit for part-time employees. They will earn 12 pro-rated
sick days per year.
» Carry-over will be the same as for full-time employees.

PAID HOLIDAYS

* Add three floating holidays to the current paid holiday list. These can be
used for when the library is open (religious holidays, state holiday, federal
holiday or an employee's birthday).

e Ful-time employees will continue to earn 7.5 hours for each paid holiday.

e Part-time employees will be pro-rated using each employee's authorized
weekly hours.

USE OF FUND BALANCE

Director Whitmer recommends the library use up to $200,000 of fund balance to
cover Corporate Fund expenditures.

She explained the projected fund balances.

BUDGET ADJUSTMENTS

Director Whitmer reviewed the budget adjustments which will reduce the need
for use of the Corporate Fund balance and conserve the Special Reserve Fund
balance.

Director Whitmer explained the liability insurance will cost more this year due to
the new policy having a calendar year renewal date. The budget will need to
be increased to $32,500 as the library will be paying for 18 months totql during
FY22-23.

Director Whitmer reviewed several other impacts that will require revisions to the
second draft including the possibility of a 15% increase in health insurance
premiums and an expected delay in the replacement of doors.

There was no opposition to Director Whitmer’s recommendations. She will
update the budget for approval in June. All agreed no committee meeting is
needed in June. Staff will prepare revised policies for the board to review and
approve in June.

Minutes of Committee of the Whole Meeting
May 18, 2022
Page20of 3

-5-



5. ltems for Information/Discussion

Trustee DuRocher would like to see the merit increase be raised from 2% - 3%.

6. Adjournment

MOTION: Trustee Stull moved to adjourn the meeting at 6:51 p-m. Trustee Ruzicka
seconded.

Voice vote:

Ayes - all

Nays - none

Absent - Trustee Lezon
Motion carried

Respectfully submitteq,

Heather J. Stull, Secretary
Board of Trustees
Warrenville Public Library District

Minutes of Committee of the Whole Meeting
May 18, 2022
Page 30f 3



CONSENT AGENDA 7b.
Approve Minutes (May 18, 2022 Regular Meeting])

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
Regular Meeting of the Board of Trustees
Wednesday, May 18, 2022, 7:00 p.m.

1. Call to order — Trustee DuRocher called the meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.

2. Roll Call

ATTENDING: Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren

ABSENT: Trustee Lezon

STAFF ATTENDING: Library Director Sandy Whitmer, Assistant to the Director Jackie Davis,
Public Services Manager Paul Dobersztyn, Marketing Specialist Kathy Gaydos,
Acquisitions and Cataloging Manager MaryKellie Marquez

Q. Approve Remote Attendance and F"grﬁ'c‘ipcﬁon - No requests for remote
attendance and participation were r’ec'eived,

3. Approval of the agenda

Trustee DURocher removed ltems #19 — Closed Session and #20 -
Discussion/action resulting from the above closed session.

MOTION: Trustee Stull moved to approve the agenda as amended. Trustee Ruzicka
seconded. "

Roll call vote:

Ayes - Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren

Nays - none

Absent - Trustee Lezon

Motion carried

4. Presentations

Q. Libraries of lllinois Risk Agency - Trevor Smith and Michael McHugh from
Gallagher Insurance

Trevor Smith and Michael McHugh of Gallagher Insurance presented
information about Libraries of lllinois Risk Agency (LIRA).

Michael McHugh explained that LIRA has provided an alternative way for
llinois Libraries to purchase their property, liability and workers
compensation insurance by providing a platform to group purchase and
pool their insurance.

He explained how LIRA began with 10 years ago with 22 libraries and now
has 59 libraries.

Mr. Smith explained the benefits and how the premium is distributed and
how claims are paid out.

Mr. Smith explained a few of their loss control solutions.



Director Whitmer stated the library would be moving to a group with a risk
Mmanagement component. The Board Treasurer will need to be bonded
separately and that cost is not included in the quote.

Director Whitmer will make g recommendation at the June Board

Meeting.
5. Public comments - none
6, Correspondence

Director Whitmer shared two emails she received from members — one thanking
the library for being a wonderful place for her family to visit and one requesting
the removal of the IPADs from the children’s section.

7. Consent Agenda

Trustee Stull read the consent agenda as follows:

a. Approve Minutes of the April 20, 2022 Committee of the Whole Meeting

b. Approve Minutes of the April 20, 2022 Regular Board Meeting

c. Approve Minutes of the April 20, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Closed Session
d. Receive and file Financial Report for April

MOTION: Trustee Picha moved to approve the consent agenda as read. Trustee
Richardson seconded.

Roll call vote:

Ayes — Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren

Nays - none

Absent - Trustee Lezon

Motion carried

8. Reguiar Agenda

Q. Approve payments for the period of April 21-May 18, 2022

MOTION: Trustee Picha moved to pay invoices in the amount of $51,939.85 for the
period of April 21, 2022 through May 18, 2022 including electronic payments and
checks #8785 - 8831. Trustee Stull seconded.

Roll call vote:

Ayes - Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren

Nays - none

Absent - Trustee Lezon

Motion carried

b. Approve fransfer of funds

MOTION: Trustee Ruzicka moved to fransfer $150,000 from commercial checking
account fo operating checking account. Trustee Richardson seconded.
Roll call vote:

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
May 18, 2022
Page 2 of 5



Ayes - Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren
Nays - none

Absent - Trustee Lezon

Motion carried

9. Unfinished Business — none

10. New Business.

a. Authorize staff to vote in favor of the requested amendment to the
Intergovernmental Agreement Providing for Risk Management and
Authorizing Membership in the Library Insurance Management and Risk
Control (“LIMRICC")

Director Whitmer explained as it is currently written the IGA requires 100%
of the membership to vote unanimously to make any revisions to the
document. The requested amendment would require 2/3 vote of the
membership o make changes to the IGA.

MOTION: Trustee Warren moved to quthorize staff to vote in favor of the requested
amendment fo the Intergovernmental Agreement Providing for Risk Management and
Authorizing Membership in the Library Insurance Management and Risk Control
(“LIMRICC"). Trustee Picha seconded.

Roll call vote:

Ayes - Trustees DuRocher, Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren

Nays - none

Absent ~Trustee Lezon

Motion carried

b. Authorize library's authorized IMRF agent fo request an Early Retirement
Incentive cost estimate

Trustee DuRocher stated she has done research on this item which has to
be offered to everyone. She feels it is blackhole to be looking into.
Trustee Picha asked if there is any cost to the library to have the cost
estimate completed. Director Whitmer stated there is no cost involved.

MOTION: Trustee Stull moved to authorize the library’s authorized illinois M unicipal

Retirement Fund agent to request an Early Retirement Incentive cost estimate. Trustee
Ruzicka seconded.

Voice vote:

Ayes —Trustees Picha, Richardson, Ruzicka, Stull, Warren
Nays — none

Abstain - Trustee DuRocher

Absent - Trustee Lezon

Motion carried

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
May 18, 2022
Page 3 of 5



1. Director’s Report

» Director Whitmer stated she hosted two in-person meetings in April - Public
Library Directors gathering and Warrenville Intergovernmentai Meeting

* The Fifth Third Money Market account was closed.

* Member Services Manager Jaime Perpich submitted her resignation earlier in
May. Director Whitmer stated she will be posting the position in the near
future along with the vacant part time shelver position.

* Director Whitmer stated the Attorney General's website is working for frustees
to complete their OMA training.

Trustee Stull asked what the DuPage Library and Information Technology (LTA)
Program Advisory Committee Meeting is. Director Whitmer stated the LTAis @
two-year course for g Library Technical Assistant Certificate. Employee Gail Smith
is currently enrolled in the program. Director Whitmer stated she is on the
Advisory Committee Meeting which reviews curriculum and other program
details. She also reviews student portfolics. Each student is also required to
complete a 75 hour practicum.

12. Department Head Reports

* Kathy Gaydos stated she had distributed information to each frustee
regarding the July 3 parade and asked if any trustee would like to
participate.  Trustee Picha stated she would if she canride in the car.
Trustees were asked to email Ms. Gaydos by June 15 if they will participate.

* Kathy Gaydos stated she and Member Services Specialist Mary Thomas held
a Meet & Greet event at Everton Flats on April 9. They offered free coffee,
donuts, marketing brochures and giveaways. They spoke with 15 people
and issued 10 new library cards. On May 10 they visited The Preserve gt
Cantera and issued 21 cards.

» Trustee DuRocher asked if the library offers services to The Warrenville
Horizons. Director Whitmer stated the library does not, however, Aduit
Services Manager Paul Dobersztyn and his staff are looking into reinstating
the home delivery services that were halted due to COVID.

* Trustee Picha asked if curbside services would be considered again in the
winter months. Director Whitmer stated she does not think so, however, the
United States Postal Service may be offering a local one-day delivery service
which might be a solution.

* Trustee Picha thanked Gail Smith for her hard work on the National Library
Week staff treats.

* Mr. Dobersztyn stated youth services staff will be visiting the schools soon to
promote summer reading.

* Paul Dobersztyn stated that he and MaryKellie Marquez manned a booth at
the Bike Rodeo on May 14.

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
May 18, 2022
Page 4 of 5

-10-



13.

President's Report
* Next meeting - regular board meeting on June 15at 7 p.m.

14, Treasurer's Report
Director Whitmer stated the library has received TIF reimbursements for the 2020
levy year from the City of Warrenville for TIF-assisted residential development.
The funds were higher than expected.

15. Secretary's Report — everything looks good.

16. Committee Reports - none

17. Trustee Comments
Trustee Stull stated she attended “Streamlining the Budget Process" an ILA frustee
workshop on May 14. She experienced some technical difficulties so will have to
finish watching the webinar and will have a report next month.
Trustee Stull stated she will be attending ATLAS Trustee Day 2022 on May 21.
Trustee Picha stated it is great to see the Management Team in attendance at
the board meetings and thanked them for everything they do.

18. ltems for information and/or discussion — none

19. Adjournment

MOTION: Trustee Picha moved to adjourn the meeting 8:10 p-m. Trustee Stull seconded.

Voice vote:

Ayes —all

Nays ~ none

Absent - Trustee Lezon
Motion carried

Respectfully submitted,

Heather J. Stull, Secretary
Board of Trustees
Warrenville Public Library District

Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting
May 18, 2022
Page 5§ of 5

-11-



CONSENT AGENDA 7c¢.
Receive & File Financial Report May 2022

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

27 W 751 STAFFORD PL

WARRENVILLE, IL 60555

May 31, 2022

~-12-



S$90re6L

0

0
04260
0
L¥BSZZ
£01822
S¥E0Zot
6G.2¢

985116

LNFHUND
azuanvan

L 3Ovd

3

8r08621

6462
8162

0

0

0
13+1:73: 74 %
61669

TEGLLLL

S3SN3dX3I  HINOW
QLA S3ISNIEX3  ¥3IHMLO
ara

§S9571

0
§595P1
LZ9

PLPEEL

Bi2L8¢

0
£0Lage
9/18¢€1
0

9L16€1

AWOONI

LpBSET

€018
144°7
0

¥¥8L

HINOW SHIASNWVML 1202/08/9 QIAEO3N
Ve ONNd
aaLuany

a3AI303y
ONI¥3HLO

4]

0
{oooo0E)
Q
{ocoooe)

8

ogsestl

6462
88ciel

£¥85¢2
0

9EvERe
64201

£lggde

%LL66

%LL66
%L 00

%9L°66

%

VeZEa61 D %00°00L

0 0
925861 0O %00°001L
6656 0 %ELLT0

SZ.6L64 ¢ %422L°66

QLA HIWEND  IWNOONI

AN IANISIY VIDIdS
Ol ONN 2LVHOCHOD
WOX4 00'000°C0E IAOW
Z22-u# NOLLNTOS3Y
LeozisLizlL

353-0+0+8+V
= VINWYoA

4066864 VLOL

0 103rodd Wildvo
Q aNN4 149 SONTT vaTv
0 AAUISTY WIDIS
o SNOILYNOG ¥34013A30
0 ‘HSYD ONINHOM
0 INNIAIY Q3HY3I430
2066861 {Q2AT) Xv1 WLOL
8155 NIV 2 9018

69tv86L ALYHOJHOD

AATT

Q3AIZ03Y G3AMI30IY XYL WIOL 1XT AAT)

ONIXVL DN XVL 40 %

S3IONYIvE ONNd

INODN!
[4474 Advyan
AVIN FTUANIHHYM

-13-



WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues Expenses Cash Basis

Income
Taxes Levied
Copiler
Fees
TIF Funds
Interest
Book Sales
Lost Books
Gifts / Memborials
Miscellaneous
Grants - Per Capita
Developer Donations

Expenses
Sal - Administration
Sal. - Member Services
Sal - Maintenance
Sal. - Marketing
Sal. - Public Services
Sal -IT
Sal. - Technical Services
LMRF. - Expense
Fica - Expense
Unemp. Comp.
Op - Mati Processing/Tech
Op - Mal'l Processing/Circ
Op - Postage
Op - Office Supplies
Op - Bank Fee's
Op - Automation Supplies
Op - Publishing
Equip. - Purchases
Equip. - Maintenance
Auto. - Software
Auto. - Purghases
Auto. - Maintenance
L. Ins. - Workmen's Comp
ins - Multi Perll Package
L. Ins. - Officer / Dir
Ins - Health / Life
Pd - Recruiling
Pd - Staff Appreciation
Pd - Stalf / Tuition Reimburse
Pd - Staff / Dues
Pd - Staff / Meetings
Pd - Staff / Transportation
Pd - Trst / Dues
Pd - Trst / Migs
Pd - Trst / Transportation
Pd - Trustee Mise
Cont - Lawyer
Cont - Accounting
Cont - Coliection
Cont - Audit

Period Ending: May 31, 2022

Corporate Fund

Corporate Fund Corporate Fund

Page 2

% Received

Month Ended 12 Months Ended °°":;":‘° f““" Balance i
May 31,2022  Jun 30, 2022 udge *pende

5 000 $ 187072452 § 198438900 & 4,664 48 99.76 %
304.65 4,619.02 1,500.00 (3.119.02) 30793 %
23.00 95.58 500.00 404 .42 1912 %
6.822.00 6,822.00 2,500.00 (432200) 27286 %
188.77 1,674 29 2,000.00 325.71 83.71%
0.00 376.68 1,000.00 623.32 3767 %
505.92 2,751 12 3.000.00 248.88 N.70%
0.00 1,780.00 1,000.00 (780.00)  178.00 %
0.00 642.84 1,000.00 357.16 64.28 %
0.00 19,087 73 16,940.00 (3.047.73)  117.80 %
0.00 100.000.00 100.000.00 0.00 100,00 %
7.844.34 2,118,800.90 2,113,829.00 (5,071.20)  100.24 %
13,604.06 158,011 69 184,000.00 25,088.31 85.88 %
20,140.21 183,513.33 222,000.00 38,486.67 B2.66 %
1,802.40 21,302.13 26,000.00 4,697 .87 B1.93%
4171.54 50,043 32 83,000.00 32,956.68 6029 %
32,690.78 351,886.03 451,000.00 99,113.97 78.02 %
3.900.00 84,073.86 104,000.00 19,926.14 80.84 %
6.227.25 70,759.10 93,000.00 22,240.90 76.09 %
7,768.53 98,320.39 117,000.00 17.679.61 84.80 %
6,067.87 67,243.13 86,000.00 18,756.87 7819 %
0.00 1.503 13 2,000.00 496 87 7516 %
1.321.34 7,984 58 9.600.00 1,615.42 83.17 %
814.54 2,140.67 4,845.00 2,704.33 4418 %
103.45 3.260.08 4,785.00 1,534.92 67.99 %
512.75 2,811.92 4.245.00 1,433.08 66.24 %
57.36 751 88 1,000.00 248 12 7519 %
720.64 3,168 56 4,000.00 831.44 79.21 %
0.00 $66.34 1,300.00 33366 7433 %
537.00 8,051 96 7.440.00 1.388.04 B134 %
310.52 2,494 75 3.000.00 505.25 B3.16 %
192.00 15,602 95 15.900.00 207 05 98 70 %
000 2,589 23 3,800.00 1.210.77 60 14 %
679.62 53,334.15 60,200.00 6,865 85 88.59 %
0.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.0¢ 0.00 %
0.00 12,768.00 14,350.00 1,582.00 88.98 %
0.00 000 8,000.00 8,000 00 0.00 %
4,386.83 48,851 73 76.500.00 27.648.27 63.86 %
000 225 00 1,500.00 1,275.00 15.00 %
346 51 1,169.85 3,900.00 2,730 05 30.00 %
0.00 0.00 750.00 750 00 0.00 %
1,135.00 2,675.00 2,775.00 100.00 96 40 %
46.93 7.336.11 16.950.00 9,613 82 4328 %
55.95 1,363.16 2.750.00 1,386.84 49.57 %
000 153.00 150.00 (300) 10200 %
32,55 1.736.96 3.050.00 1.313.04 56.95 %
0.00 454 19 750.00 295 81 60 56 %
349,99 42254 500.00 77.06 8458 %
0.00 1,687 50 4,000.00 2.312.50 4219 %
932 09 10.764 74 13.500.00 2,735.26 7974 %
19.70 234 50 1 000.00 765,50 2345 %
0.00 7,650.00 7 650.00 000 100 00 %

See Accountants Compilation Letter

-14-




Cont. - Consultants

Lib. Mat. - Adult Books
Lib. Mat. - Youth Books
Lib. Mat. - Adult AV

Lib. Mat. - Youth AV
Lib. Mat. - EBooks

Lib. Mat. - Periodicals
Lib. Mat. - Internel Subscript
Ps - Programs Adult

Ps - Programs Youth
Ps - Refunds / Fines / Fees
Ps - Printing

Ps - PR / Publicity

Ps - Misc.

Ges

B &M - Water / Sewer
Electricity

Telephone

Debt Repayment

Pebt Ceftificate Interest
Contingency

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues Expenses Cash Basis
Period Ending: May 31, 2022

Corporate Fund
0.00 0.00 7.500.00
4,518.05 46,211.11 §2,500,00
5,073.56 36,219.73 36,800.00
1.067.85 12,012.49 20.000.00
212,22 2,871.28 5,000.00
8,611.99 37,228.50 35,000.00
0.00 8.824.64 8,20000
1,100.00 31,883.27 25,000.00
751.64 6,111.83 8,500.00
344.67 6.,852.98 8,000.00
0.00 7272 1,000.00
0.00 9,502.42 13,800 00
1,747.42 8,618.04 10,570.00
0.00 150.00 650.00
849 47 8,522.04 7,000.00
0.00 792.96 1,000.00
2,659.39 32,335.38 37,000.00
1,470.06 15,361.82 17,300.00
0.00 140,000.60 140,000.00
0:00 26,580.87 26,700.00
0.00 52.72 2,000.00
136,413.80 1,717,631.96 2,113,720,00

See Accountants Compilation Letter

-15-

Page 2A

7500.00 0.00 %
6288.89 88.02 %
580.27 98.42 %
7987.51 60.06 %
2128.72 §7.43 %
-2229.50 106.37 %
-624.64 107.62 %
-8683.27 12753 %
238807 71981 %
2147.02 73.16 %
927.28 7.2T %
425758 68.86 %
1951.96 B1.53 %
§00.00 23.08 %
-1522.04 121.74 %
207.04 79.30 %
4664.62 87.30 %
1938.18 88.80 %
0.00  100.00 %
119,13 99.55 %
1,947.28 2.64 %
396,088.04 81.26 %



WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues Expenses Cash Basis
Period Ending: May 31, 2022

Page 2B

Building Malntenance Fund
Buliding & Building &
Maintenance Maintenance Bqlldlng &
Maintenance % Recelved
Fund Fund Fund Balance Expended
Month Ended 12 Months Ended Budget
Mav 34.2022  Jun 30. 2022 9
income
Taxes Levied s 0.00 § 5.558.80 § 551800 § (40.80) 100.74 %
0.00 5,658.80 5,518.00 {40.80) 100.74 %
Expenses
Maintenance 4,408.00 32,401 62 36,200.00 3768.38 89.51 %
Maintenance Suppiies 0.00 284.72 2.000.00 1705.28 14,74 %
Security 778.87 4,648,52 10,560.00 5601.48 44.06 %
: Snow Removal 0.00 17,325.00 20,000.00 2675.00 86.63 %
| Hvac 0.00 6,482.45 5.250.00 -1232.45 123.48 %
Janitorial Supplies 354 43 2,930.03 10,000.00 7069.97 28.30 %
B & M - Landscape Maint §99.78 5836.70 8,110.00 2,273.30 71.97 %
| 6,241.08 69,919.04 $2,110.00 22,190.96 7591 %

-16-

See Accountants Compilation Letter



Page 2C
WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues Expenses Cash Basis
Period Ending: May 31, 2022

Alba Lemos Gift Fund
Alba Lemos Gift  Alba Lemos Gift Alba Lemos Gift
Fund Fund Fund Balance % Recelved
Month Ended 12 Months Ended Budget Expended
May 31,2022  Jun 30, 2022 @
Income
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
Expenses
Lib. Mat. - EBooks $ 000 § 2,979.00 $ 3,00000 $ 21.00 99.30 %
0.00 2,879.00 3,000.00 21.00 88.30 %

See Accountants Compilation Letter

-17-



Income

Expenses
Equip. - Purchases
Auto. - Purchases
Maintenance
Security

WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT

Statement of Revenues Expenses Cash Basis

Period Ending: May 31, 2022
Special Reserve Fund

Special Reserve  Special Reserve

Special Reserve

Page 2D

Fund Fund % Received
Month Ended 12 Months Ended BZ';"‘:' Balance Expended
May 31,2022  Jun 30, 2022 8

0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

5 000 § 0.00 $ 10,000.00 $ 10.000.00 0.00 %
0.00 88.89 13,150.00 13,061.14 0.68 %
0.00 7.428.90 56,000.00 48571 10 13.27 %
0.00 0.00 7.500.00 7.500.00 0.00 %
0.00 7.617,719 86,660.00 78,132.21 8.68 %

See Accountants Compilation Letter

-18-



Page 3
WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY DISTRICT
Statement of Assets & Liabilities Cash Basis

May 31, 2022
Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Petty Cash 250.00
Cash In Drawer 160.00
Cash / Copier Change 75.00
Fifth Third 7985 229,376.11
Fifth Third 8004 1,729,230.58
1,959,091.69
General Fixed Assets $ 5,519,239.00
TOTAL ASSETS $ 7.478,330.69
LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Deferred Revenues 228,102.67
IMRF. 5,024,18
233,126.85
LLONG - TERM LIABILITIES
Debt Certificate Payable 1,410,000.00
1,643,126.85
EQUITY
Fund Balance $ 5,835,203.84
TOTAL LIABILITIES & FUND BALANCE $ 7.478330.69

See Accountant's Compilation Report

-19-



CONSENT AGENDA 7d.
Approve Sikich LLP for FY 2022 Audit

May 17, 2022

The Honorable President
Members of the Board of Trustees
Warrenville Public Library District
28W751 Stafford Place
Warrenville, lllinois 60555

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Master CPA Professional Services Agreement (this "Agreement”), effective as of May 17, 2022,
between Sikich LLP, an fllinois limited liability partnership, ("Sikich", "we", "us”, or "our") and Warrenville
Public Library District ("Client", "you", or "your") sets forth the mutual agreements of the parties regarding
our provision of one or more professional CPA services to Client, from time to time, as more fully described
in Sikich Statements of Work (each, an "SOW") issued hereunder (collectively, the "Services"),

Agreement and a SOW, the terms of this Agreement shall prevail, unless the SOW expressly references
the specific provision in this Agreement to be modified by the SOW. This Agreement shall not govern
engagements related to Sikich’s affiliated entities or Sikich services or offerings other than CPA Services,
and a separate agreement for such services will be required. To the extent the term of an SOW extends
beyond the expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shali apply to
such SOW until expiration of such SOW.

The general terms governing this Agreement are as follows:
ENGAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION

In connection with this Agreement, we may communicate with you or others via e-mail transmission. As
e-mails can be intercepted and read, disclosed or otherwise used or communicated by an unintended
third-party or may not be delivered to each of the parties to whom they are directed and only to such parties,
we cannot guarantee or warrant that e-mails from us will be properly delivered and read only by the
addressee. Therefore, we specifically disclaim and waive any liability or responsibility whatsoever for
interception or unintentional disclosure of e-mails transmitted by us or in connection with the performance
of this Agreement. In that regard, you agree that we shall have no liability for any loss or damage to any
person or entity resulting from the use of e-mail transmissions, including any consequential, incidental,
direct, indirect, or special damages, such as loss of revenues or anticipated profits or disclosure or
communication of confidential or proprietary information. Communications by email are authorized unless
written objection is provided to us prior to any such communication.

We may from time to time, and depending on the circumstances, use third-party service providers in serving
your account. We may share confidential information about you with these service providers, but remain
committed to maintaining the confidentiality and security of your information. Accordingly, we maintain
internal policies, procedures, and safeguards designed to protect the confidentiality of your personal

agreement, you will be asked to provide your consent prior to the sharing of your confidential information
with the third-party service provider. Furthermore, we will remain responsible for the work provided by any
such third-party service providers engaged by us.

-20-



Client hereby explicitly acknowledges and consents to Sikich's use of third-party cloud computing services
to store confidential and proprietary information and other data of the Client, and agrees that Sikich's use
of such cloud services coupled with the use of encrypted devices, password protections and firewall
protection shall constitute the best efforts of Sikich to safeguard such information and data from
unauthorized disclosure. Client further agrees that, subject to applicable law, Sikich shall only be liable for
such unauthorized disclosure or use if it has been finally judicially determined by a court of competent
jurisdiction that Sikich did not take commercially reasonable measures to protect the confidential and
proprietary information and other data of the Client from unauthorized disclosure or use,

FEES; INVOICES
Our fees for the Services are detailed in the applicable SOW.

Services will be invoiced to you from time-to-time as work progresses and are payable in accordance with
applicable State statutes. Invoices not paid timely will have interest charged on outstanding balances in
accordance with applicable State statutes. In accordance with our firm policies, work will be suspended if
your account becomes ninety (90) days or more overdue and will not be resumed until your account is paid
in full. If we elect to terminate our Services for nonpayment, or other reasonable causes such as failure to
provide the information or cooperation necessary for successful performance of our Services, our provision
of Services will be deemed to have been completed upon written notification of termination, even if we have
not completed our report. You will be obligated to compensate us for all time expended and to reimburse
us for all out-of-pocket expenditures through the date of termination.

In the event that you desire to hire a member of the Sikich staff within one year of the completion of this
Agreement, a recruiting fee will be assessed at 30% of the first year salary per hire and paid to Sikich upon
our notification of such hiring.

If significant additional time is necessary, we will keep you informed of any problems we encounter and our
fees will be adjusted accordingly. Our invoices for these fees are payable upon presentation and will be
rendered each month as work progresses or as detailed in the applicable SOW.

RECORD RETENTION; CONFIDENTIALITY

It is our policy to keep records related to this Agreement for seven years (from report release date for the
audit). However, Sikich does not keep any original client records, and we will return those to you at the
completion of the Services rendered under this Agreement. When records are returned to you, it is your
responsibility to retain and protect your records for possible future use, including potential examination by
any government or regulatory agencies. The documentation for this Agreement is the property of Sikich.

All information obtained in the course of performing our agreed professional Services, including but not
limited to, statements, records, schedules, working papers, memorandums, reports, and all other
documents and work product prepared by Sikich, will be considered confidential matters not to be disclosed
to any other person or persons without your prior written permission, unless otherwise required pursuant to
professional standards, statutory or regulatory authority, or court order. The foregoing obligation of
confidentiality shall not apply to any information that was in the public domain at the time of the
communication thereof to Sikich.

As a result of our prior or future services to you, we might be requested or required to provide information
or documents to you or a third party in a legal, administrative, regulatory inquiry or arbitration or similar
proceeding in which we are not a party. If this occurs, our efforts in complying with such requests will be
deemed billable to you as a separate engagement. We shall be entitled to compensation for our time and
reasonable reimbursement for our expenses (including legal fees) in complying with the request.

-21-



INDEMNIFICATION; LIMITATION OF LIABILITY

You hereby agree to indemnify and hold harmless Sikich and its partners, directors, employees, agents or
subcontractors against all costs, expenses, losses, judgments, damages and liabilities (including
reasonable attorneys’ fees and expenses) associated with any third party claim, threat or proceeding
relating to the performance of the Services by Sikich under this Agreement, other than as determined
through mediation to have been caused by our own gross negligence or willful misconduct.

You agree that our maximum liability to you for any negligent errors or omissions committed by us in the
performance of the Services will be limited to the total amount of fees we receive from you under the
applicable SOW for the Services provided under such SOW giving rise to the liability, except to the extent
determined to result from our gross negligence or wiliful misconduct. You agree that this limitation applies
to any and all liability or causes of action against us, however alleged or arising, unless otherwise prohibited
by law or professional standards. Additionally, our liability as accountants shall be limited to the period
covered by our Services and shall not extend to later periods for which we are not engaged as accountants
or prior periods before we were engaged as accountants. In no event will Sikich be liable to you or any third
party, whether a claim be in tort, contract or otherwise, for any amount in excess of the total professional
fees paid pursuant to this Agreement for the Services provided under this Agreement giving rise to the
liability, or for any special, consequential, exemplary, incidental indirect, lost profit, punitive or similar
damages of any kind.

No (i) direct or indirect holder of any equity interests or securities of Sikich, (i) affiliate of Sikich, or
(iii) director, officer, employee, representative, or agent of Sikich, or of an affiliate of Sikich or of any such
direct or indirect holder of any equity interests or securities of Sikich (collectively, the "Sikich Affiliates”)
shall have any liability or obligation of any nature whatsoever in connection with or under this Agreement
or the transactions contemplated hereby, and Client waives and releases all claims against such Sikich
Affiliates related to any such liability or obligation.

DISPUTE RESOLUTION; GOVERNING LAW

If any dispute, controversy, or claim arises in connection with the performance or breach of this Agreement,
either party may, on written notice to the other party, request that the matter be mediated. Such mediation
will be conducted by a mediator appointed by and pursuant to the Rules of the American Arbitration
Association or such other neutral facilitator acceptable to both parties. Both parties will exert their
commercially reasonable best efforts to discuss with each other in good faith their respective positions in
an attempt to finally resolve such dispute or controversy. Each party may disclose any facts to the other
party or the mediator which it, in good faith, considers necessary to resolve the matter. All such discussions,
however, will be for the purpose of assisting in settlement efforts and will not be admissible in any
subsequent litigation or proceeding against the disclosing party. Except as agreed by both parties in writing,
the mediator will keep confidential all information disclosed during negotiations. The mediation proceedings
will conclude within sixty (60) days from receipt of the written notice unless extended or terminated sooner
by mutual consent. Each party will be responsible for its own expenses. The fees and expenses of the
mediator, if any, will be borne equally by the parties.

THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE
LAWS OF THE STATE OF ILLINOIS. SIKICH AND CLIENT KNOWINGLY, VOLUNTARILY AND
IRREVOCABLY WAIVE ANY RIGHT TO TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION, PROCEEDING OR
COUNTERCLAIM (WHETHER BASED UPON CONTRACT, TORT OR OTHERWISE) RELATED TO OR
ARISING OUT OF OR IN CONNECTION WITH THE ENGAGEMENT OF SIKICH PURSUANT TO, OR
THE PERFORMANCE BY SIKICH OF THE SERVICES CONTEMPLATED BY, THIS AGREEMENT.

TERM; TERMINATION
If either party hereto desires to terminate this Agreement, or an SOW, it may do so at any time for any

reason by giving written notice to the other party. In such event, Sikich will be paid for fees and expenses
incurred through the termination date, as well as for reasonable engagement closing costs.

~22-



INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR

Itis understood and agreed that Sikich will for all purposes be an independent contractor, will not hold itself
out as representing or acting in any manner for Client, and neither Sikich nor Client will have any authority
to bind the other party to any contract or in any other manner. Sikich and Client do not intend to create a
joint employer relationship, and Sikich and Client each represents that it is the sole employer of its
employees. Sikich shall not and does not have the right to control Client's employees’ essential terms and
conditions of employment, including hiring its employees, determining their wages and benefits, or
assigning, scheduling, training, disciplining, or terminating Client's employees.

OFAC REPRESENTATION

Client represents and warrants the following with respect to the U.S. Treasury Department’s Office of
Foreign Assets Control ("OFAC”): (a) Client does not have any nexus with persons or entities on any of
OFAC's sanctions list (e.g. SSI, SDN, FSE etc.) either through large shareholders, employees, beneficial
owners, vendors, affiliated entities (i.e. affiliates or subsidiaries), third parties, customer base or otherwise;
(b) Client does not have any operations in any comprehensive OFAC sanctioned country (Cuba, Iran, Syria,
Sudan, North Korea, the Crimea); (c) Client does not have any operations in any limited OFAC sanctioned
country program; or (d) Client does not remit payment for Sikich’s fees and expenses from an OFAC
sanctioned country.

NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES

This Agreement does not and is not intended to confer any rights or remedies upon any person or entity
other than the parties.

FORCE MAJEURE

Sikich shall not be deemed in default of any provision of this Agreement or be liable for any delay, failure in
performance, or interruption of the Services resulting directly or indirectlyfrom acts of God, electronic virus
attack or infiltration, civil or military authority action, civil disturbance, war, strike and other labor disputes,
fires, floods, other catastrophes, and other forces beyond its reasonable control.

NOTICES

All notices given under or pursuant to this Agreement will be sent by national courier, Certified or Registered
Mail, Return Receipt Requested, and will be deemed to have been delivered when physically delivered to
Client or Sikich at the following address:

If to Sikich:

Sikich LLP

1415 W. Diehl Rd., Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60563

Attention: Brian LeFevre, CPA, MBA

With a copy to:

Sikich LLP

1415 W. Diehl Road, Suite 400
Naperville, IL 60653

Attention: Office of General Counsel

If to Client:

Warrenville Public Library District
28W751 Stafford Place
Warrenville, lllinois 60555
Attention: Sandra Whitmer

-23-



SURVIVAL

Those provisions that by their nature are intended to survive termination or expiration of this Agreement
and any right or obligation of the parties in this Agreement which, by its express terms of nature and context
is intended to survive termination or expiration of this Agreement, shall so survive any such termination or
expiration.

MISCELLANEOUS

Entire Agreement: This Agreement, the Exhibits attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, and
the SOWSs, constitute the entire agreement between Sikich, on one side, and Client on the other side,
regarding the terms of this Agreement. In the event Client requires Sikich to execute a purchase order or
other Client documentation in order to receive payment for Services, the terms and conditions contained in
such purchase order or documentation shall be null and void and shall not govern the terms of this
Agreement. This Agreement is entered into without reliance on any promise or representation, written or
oral, other than those expressly contained herein and supersedes any other such promises or
representations. This Agreement can only be modified by a written agreement signed by duly authorized
representatives of each party.

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts (and by facsimile or other electronic
means), each of which shall constitute an original and all of which together will be deemed to be one and
the same document.

Severability: The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall not affect the validity
or enforceability of any other provision.

Authority; Due Authorization; Enforceability: Each party hereto represents and warrants that it has all
requisite power and authority to enter into this Agreement and to perform its obligations hereunder. Each
party hereto further represents and warrants that this Agreement has been duly and validly authorized by
all necessary corporate action and has been duly executed and delivered by each such party and
constitutes the legal, valid and binding agreement of each such party, enforceable in accordance with its
terms.

Counse! Representation: The terms of this Agreement have been negotiated by the parties hereto, who
have each been represented by counsel, there shall be no presumption that any of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be construed adverse to any party as “drafter” in the event of a contention of ambiguity in
this Agreement, and the parties waive any statute or rule of law to such effect.

Assignment: This Agreement may not be assigned by any party hereto without the prior written consent of
the other party. Any attempted assignment of this Agreement made without such consent shall be void and
of no effect, at the option of the non-assigning party.

Headings: Headings used herein are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect the interpretation
or construction of this Agreement.

ACCEPTANCE

You acknowledge having read this Agreement in its entirety, have had full opportunity to consider its terms
in consultation with your attorney, have had full and satisfactory explanation of the same, and fully
understand and agree to be bound by the terms of this Agreement.

Please indicate your understanding and acceptance of this Agreement and your intention to be legally

bound hereby by executing this Agreement in the space provided below where indicated and return it to
our offices, indicating your authorization for us to proceed on the above terms and conditions.

-24-



We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. If you have any questions, please let us know.
Sincerely,

g D /ZT?ALLH )

Brian LeFevre, CPA, MBA
Partner

On behalf of Sikich LLP
Acknowledged:

Warrenville Public Library District

Name

Title

Date

-25-



STATEMENT OF WORK
No. 192368-2022-AUD

This Statement of Work (this "SOW") dated May 17, 2022 is entered into by and between Sikich LLP
("Sikich", "we", "us", or "our") and Warrenville Public Library District ("Client", "you", or "your") pursuant to
the Master CPA Professional Services Agreement dated May 17, 2022 between Sikich and the Client (the
"Agreement"), all terms of which are hereby incorporated herein by reference.

AUDIT SCOPE AND OBJECTIVES

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing premises, and the agreements of the parties
set forth below, Sikich and Client agree as follows: The Services to be provided under this SOW will include
an audit of the financial statements of the governmental activities, each major fund and the aggregate
remaining fund information and the related disclosures, which collectively comprise the basic financial
statements of the Client as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 (the “financial statements").

We have also been engaged to report on supplementary information that accompanies the Client's financial
statements. We will subject the following supplementary information to the auditing procedures applied in
our audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial
statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAS"), and we will provide an
opinion on it in relation to the financial statements as a whole in a report combined with our auditors report
on the financial statements:

* Combining and Individual Fund Financial Statements and Schedules

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, we will read the following other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exists, we are
required to describe it in our report.

* Introductory Section (Management'’s Discussion and Analysis)

e Supplementary Information

The objectives of our audit are to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion about whether your financial statements are fairly presented, in all material respects,
in conformity with the modified cash basis of accounting and report on the fairess of the supplementary
information referred to in the paragraph above when considered in relation to the financial statements as a
whole. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements, including omissions, can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would
influence the judgment of a reasonable user made based on the financial statements.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

We will conduct our audit in accordance with GAAS and will include tests of your accounting records and
other procedures we consider necessary to enable us to express such opinions. As part of an audit in
accordance with GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

We will evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management. We will also evaluate the overall presentation of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and determine whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. We will plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, whether from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or
(4) violations of laws or governmental regulations that are attributable to the government or to acts by
management or employees acting on behalf of Client.

-26-



Because of the inherent limitations of an audit, combined with the inherent limitations of internal control,
and because we will not perform a detailed examination of all transactions, there is an unavoidable risk that
some material misstatements may not be detected by us, even though the audit is properly planned and
performed in accordance with GAAS. In addition, an audit is not designed to detect immaterial
misstatements or violations of laws or governmental regulations that do not have a direct and material effect
on the financial statements. However, we will inform the appropriate level of management of any material
errors, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets that come to our attention. We will also
inform the appropriate level of management of any violations of laws or governmental regulations that come
to our attention, unless clearly inconsequential. Our responsibility as auditors is limited to the period covered
by our audit and does not extend to any later periods for which we are not engaged as auditors.

We will also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the government’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

Our procedures will include tests of documentary evidence supporting the transactions recorded in the
accounts and may include tests of the physical existence of inventories and direct confirmation of
receivables and certain assets and liabilities by correspondence with selected customers, creditors, and
financial institutions. We will request written representations from your attorneys as part of the provision of
Services, and they may bill you for responding to this inquiry.

AUDIT PROCEDURES - INTERNAL CONTROL

We will obtain an understanding of Client and its environment, including internal control relevant to the
audit, sufficient to identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to error or fraud, and to design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks and obtain
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinions. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control. An audit is
not designed to provide assurance on internal control or to identify deficiencies in internal control.
Accordingly, we will express no such opinion. However, during the audit, we will communicate to
management and those charged with governance internal control related matters that are required to be
communicated under AICPA professional standards.

AUDIT PROCEDURES - COMPLIANCE

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we will perform tests of the Client's compliance with provisions of applicable laws,
regulations, contracts and agreements. However, the objective of our audit will not be to provide an opinion
on overall compliance and we will not express such an opinion.

NONATTEST SERVICES

Nonattest Services expected to be performed during our audit of the Financial Statements as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2022 and other deliverables are as follows:

e Assistance in preparing the financial statements based on information provided by you
* Prepare ten (10) copies of the annual financial report (AFR) of the District.

» Prepare ten (10) copies of the management letter, communicating any material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies found during the audit and our recommendations for improvement.

e Prepare three (3) hard copies (and electronic filing) of the Annual Financial Report to the
Comptroller of the State of Hlinois.

* Report to the District in accordance with the Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 114,
Communication with Those Charged with Governance.

We will perform the nonattest services in accordance with applicable professional standards. We, in our
sole professional judgment, reserve the right to refuse to perform any procedure or take any action that
could be construed as assuming management responsibilities. We will advise management with regard to
the nonattest services listed above, but management must make all decisions with regard to those matters.

-27-



RESPONSIBILITIES OF MANAGEMENT FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our audit will be conducted on the basis that you acknowledge and understand your responsibility for
designing, implementing, and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, including
monitoring ongoing activities; for the selection and application of accounting principles; and for the
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in conformity with the modified cash basis of
accounting.

Management is responsible for making drafts of financial statements, all financial records and related
information available to us and for the accuracy and completeness of that information (including information
from outside of the general and subsidiary ledgers). You are also responsible for providing us with
(1) access to all information of which you are aware that is relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements, such as records, documentation, identification of all related parties and all
related-party relationships and transactions, and other matters: (2) additional information that we may
request for the purpose of the audit; and (3) unrestricted access to persons within the Client from whom we
determine it necessary to obtain audit evidence. At the conclusion of our audit, we will require certain
representation from you about the financial statements and related matters.

Your responsibilities include adjusting the financial statements to correct material misstatements and
confirming to us in the management representation letter that the effects of any uncorrected misstatements
aggregated by us during the current engagement and pertaining to the latest period presented are
immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements of each opinion unit taken as
a whole.

You are responsible for the design and implementation of programs and controls to prevent and detect
fraud, and for informing us about all known or suspected fraud affecting the Client involving (1)
management, (2) employees who have significant roles in internal control, and (3) others where the fraud
could have a material effect on the financial statements. Your responsibilities include informing us of your
knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Client received in communications
from employees, former employees, regulators, or others. In addition, you are responsible for identifying
and ensuring that the Client complies with applicable laws and regulations.

You are responsible for the preparation of the supplementary information in conformity with the modified
cash basis of accounting. You agree to include our report on the supplementary information in any
document that contains, and indicates that we have reported on the supplementary information. You also
agree to include the audited financial statements with any presentation of the supplementary information
that includes our report thereon or make the audited financial statements readily available to users of the
supplementary information no later than the date the supplementary information is issued with our report
thereon. Your responsibilities include acknowledging to us in the written representation letter that (1) you
are responsible for presentation of the supplementary information in accordance with the modified cash
basis of accounting; (2) you believe the supplementary information, including its form and content, is fairly
presented in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting; (3) the methods of measurement or
presentation have not changed from those used in the prior period (or, if they have changed, the reasons
for such changes); and (4) you have disclosed to us any significant assumptions or interpretations
underlying the measurement or presentation of the supplementary information.

You agree to assume all management responsibilities relating to the financial statements and related notes
and for any other nonattest services we provide. You will be required to acknowledge in the management
representation letter our assistance with preparation of the financial statements and related notes and that
you have reviewed and approved the financial statements and related notes prior to their issuance and
have accepted responsibility for them. Further, you agree to oversee the nonattest services by designating
an individual, preferably from senior management, who possesses suitable skill, knowledge, or experience;
evaluate the adequacy and results of the services; and accept responsibility for them.

~28-



REPORTING

We will issue a written report upon completion of our audit of the financial statements. Our report will be
addressed to the Honorable President and Members of the Board of Trustees of Client. Circumstances may
arise in which our report may differ from its expected form and content based on the results of our audit.
Depending on the nature of these circumstances, it may be necessary for us to modify our opinions, add a
separate section, or add an emphasis-of-matter or other-matter paragraph to our auditor's report, or if
necessary, withdraw from this engagement. If our opinions are other than unmodified, we will discuss the
reasons with you in advance. If circumstances occur related to the condition of your records, the availability
of sufficient, appropriate audit evidence, or the existence of a significant risk of material misstatement of
the financial statements caused by error, fraudulent financial reporting, or misappropriation of assets, which
in our professional judgment prevent us from completing the audit or forming an opinion on the financial
statements, we retain the right to take any course of action permitted by professional standards, including
declining to express an opinion or issue a report, or withdrawing from the Agreement.

ENGAGEMENT ADMINISTRATION, FEES AND OTHER

The assistance to be supplied by Client personnel is described in the workpaper request lists for preliminary
(interim) and final fieldwork, which outline the specific schedules and information we are requesting for this
Agreement. The workpaper request lists will be discussed with and coordinated with Sandra Whitmer,
Director. The timely and accurate completion of this work is an essential condition to our completion of the
audit, financial statement preparation, and issuance of our audit report. This SOW assumes all records,
documentation, and information we requested in connection with our audit and financial statement
preparation assistance services (and outlined in the workpaper request lists) are complete and available at
the beginning of the respective phases of the provision of Services. It also assumes key personnel are
available to us for the duration of the audit and preparation of the financial statements. We understand that
your employees will prepare all cash, accounts receivable, and other confirmations we request and will
locate any documents selected by us for testing.

We are committed to the timely completion of the audit, performance of nonattest services as described
above, and delivery of final reports for the fee set forth in this SOW. Factors potentially impacting the fee
and thereby warranting an adjustment to the fee or issuance of a modification to this SOW include, but are
not limited to:

1. Failure to provide schedules and information outlined in the workpaper request lists by our mutually
agreed upon dates or such schedules and information being incomplete or inaccurate.

2. Requests by you for Sikich to complete schedules or obtain information previously mutually agreed
to be completed by or provided by you.

3. Rescheduling preliminary (interim) or final fieldwork within thirty (30) days of the mutually
agreed-upon timing of the engagement. Should Sikich be unable to redeploy members of the
engagement team within this thirty (30) day period, we reserve the right to bill for time these
individuals are not able to be reassigned to other client engagements.

4. Requests by you for Sikich to perform nonattest services in addition to those identified and
described in the “Nonattest Services” section above,

5. Other time deemed outside the scope of services of the engagement as set forth in this SOW.

Final reports will be issued upon your approval of the preliminary drafts. Our engagement ends on delivery
of our final report. Any follow-up services that might be required will be a separate, new engagement. The
terms and conditions of that new engagement will be governed by a new, specific SOW for that service.
Brian LeFevre is the engagement Partner and is responsible for supervising the provision of Services and
signing the report or authorizing another individual to sign it. We expect to begin our audit in approximately
October 2022.

Our fees for the Services consistent with our proposal dated January 11, 2021, will not exceed $7,925 for
the District audit, which includes out-of-pocket costs such as report reproduction, postage, etc. These fees
is based on anticipated cooperation from your personnel and the assumption that unexpected
circumstances will not be encountered during the audit. If significant additional time is necessary, we will
discuss it with you and arrive at a new fee estimate before we incur the additional costs.

-29.



In accordance with professional standards, any discussions during the period of the audit engagement
between Client and a member of the Sikich audit engagement team regarding potential employment or
association with Client creates an impairment of independence for the Sikich employee and possibly the
firm. Such a situation could require us to temporarily or permanently remove that person from your audit
engagement or to perform additional procedures or re-perform procedures, which would increase our fees.
Should we not become aware of the impairment until after the conclusion of the provision of Services, our
independence would be deemed to have been impaired. Please inform appropriate Client personnel to
refrain from any such discussions with any Sikich staff while the audit Services are ongoing and notify Brian
LeFevre immediately if Client becomes aware that any such discussions may have occurred.

You may request that we perform additional services not contemplated by this Agreement. If this occurs,
we will communicate with you regarding the scope of the additional services and the estimated fees. We
also may issue a separate Statement of Work or Change Order covering the additional services. In the
absence of any other written communication from us documenting such additional services our services
will continue to be governed by the terms of this SOW.

This SOW is governed by the terms and conditions of the Agreement. The terms of the Agreement are
hereby expressly incorporated by reference into and made a part of this SOW. In the event of a conflict
between the terms and conditions of the Agreement and this SOW, the terms of the Agreement shall take
precedence and control over those of this SOW unless otherwise expressly and specifically set forth herein.
In the event of a conflict between the terms and conditions of this SOW and any related exhibits,
attachments, or proposals, the terms of this SOW shall take precedence and control over those of the
exhibit, attachment, or proposal hereto unless otherwise expressly and specifically set forth herein. Any
capitalized terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the Agreement. This
SOW may be executed (including by facsimile and PDF signature) in one or more counterparts, with the
same effect as if the parties had signed the same document. This SOW may be modified or amended only
by a written document signed by both parties.

ACCEPTANCE

You acknowledge having read this SOW in its entirety, have had full opportunity to consider its terms in
consultation with your attorney, have had full and satisfactory explanation of the same, and fully understand
and agree to be bound by the terms of this SOW.

Please indicate your understanding and acceptance of this SOW and your intention to be legally bound
hereby by executing this SOW in the space provided below where indicated and return it to our offices,
indicating your authorization for us to proceed on the above terms and conditions.

We appreciate the opportunity to be of service to you. If you have any questions, please let us know.

Sincerely,

é D’Z‘Z«J‘LK

Brian LeFevre, CPA, MBA
Partner

On behalf of Sikich LLP
Acknowledged:

Warrenville Public Library District

Name

Title

Date

-30-



CONSENT AGENDA 7e.
Adopt Working Budget for FY2023

The Working Budget for FY23 is included on the following pages.

Director Whitmer has made adjustments to many lines based on spending frends in prior
years. Adjustments to salaries reflect actual pay increase rates to be implemented in
July. All employees will receive a 4% cost of living increase. Employees are also eligible
for @ 1% or 2% merit increase based on their overall performance rating for 2021-2022.

Overall, the corporate fund will rely on $188,000 of fund balance to balance the
budget. (The goal was to use less than $200,000 of fund balance.)

General comments for the FY23 budget are included on the cover page.

Any trustee may request to pull this item off of the consent agenda to be discussed
during the regular agenda portion of the meeting. (Please make this request during the
“Approval of the Agenda.”)

-31-



‘AIDssa08uU J|

PusIg Aiiar ay Jo yjoey [pasy wisp-Buo| ayy josjoid
O} sjUBLSNIPD SYOW [ PUD SWODUL O} SjoRdWI
[P}UBJOd 1O} IOHUOLL Of SNUIIUOD [IM M ‘EZA] UI SJSOD
P8iDjRI-oIEPURd UD2IWUBIS AUC SJDAIDHUD |OU OP SM

SIDVdWI 61-QIAOD

'SOJ0J 1OMIS
PUD 1340M s AlID By} 0} s8sD815U| pup Ajddns Jupoaje
10} }201UCD M3U D 'sjsoD ABIsua Buisu jo asnnoaq
18yBiy Apubils eq o} sjsod Alyn 1no spodidyuD apm
SDJBWDD AJLINDSS JO UOD|DISY]  »
SI00P AjUS JO JUBWADDIDY
sjuswadp(dal/nodal mopupy, e
:sp0afoud
SoUDUBUIDW |DIBASS 104 Buipuny sepnoul jaBpng
SIU} SISO2 ©OUDUB}UIDW BUHNO) ‘PauuD|d O} UCHIPPD U
SaHIUN B doupuajuibw Bulping

JuBID)

XD] [910H SjjlausLDM 10 AltD 00 ‘€1 © AQ pauoddns aio
H10g 100Q 34D S33UDW DIsN ADPUNS PUD SUOWILLIOD)
Y} Uo spadUOYD "ysiuods w BuruwpiBosd poddns o)
186pnq woiBoid Ynpo ay; o) pappo uasq soy 000‘ 1
"2l WSIUBWIOW B $¥00g 000’ |, MBU By} poddns

0§ 000’ L% AQ paspaul soy jebpng woiboid Ynok EY
Agonqng 3 Bujwwipibolg

‘Saulioap {SH00qoIPND

PUD 502D "SQAQ) suoyD8}e0 DiPaW [paIsAYd INo Jo

85N SO SUOKDIYI0D |oBIP 1ojndod poddns o) pejoooyoa:
U38Qq 9ADY SPUN} JOASMOH ‘ZZA4 WOl AjUoDyuB)s
pabubyo jou aaby spusiou Aiql 10} sja6png ay|
sjoj2jow Aoiqn

“JuswiasINquua.

UoyIN} 8A18031 [jim seaAoldwe asiy) ‘peuunid

24 |Im 8DIAIS-UI 4OIS V "€Z0¢ OCXT NYMS PUSHD O}
HPJS 8|GDUS JIm 5PUNY “SDUSIDJUOD [DUOHIOU D PUSHD O}
SUDIC UDLDIQY| SODIAISS UINOA v "siputgem pup sBujosw
Hoys 'sdoysiiom auluo ul sypdioiuod of soagsnyy

PUD 045 MOJIO O} PIJOIO|ID UBSQ SARY SPUN JUBIDIHNS
uawdo|aaaq |puojssajoid

"2IOMPIDY SNOSUD]IBDSIW

1840 pUD sDd AOPISBP OIS "JBAISS O “SIJN0I

Om| 90DIdB) 0} pajabpng SID SPUN) SAISSSI [pioads
ABojouyss) / uoypluony

's|@Aa| Bulpis pup uoypedo jo

SINoY 0} s3BUDYD AUD SISPISUOD AIiq sy I Indiay aq
™ YDIym DIOP APNOY SBPIACID JOU} UOHNIOS SIDMJJOS

© 0} 18puNno2 adosd ino spIBdn o} pajabpng s) 000'S$
$aspYy2Ing juawdinby/ainguing

(P4uod) SIHONHOIH FUNLIANIX

swiniweld Aguupy/asnods/piya Jo uoyod D SI0ys M
AIDIQY BUL 1I0BA Sy MaN "UDId §SOD JSEMO| 8Y} UO SO0
8y jo uood 5,A0Iq) 8y} 3s0q o seoyooid Buoys
wniws1d INo §snfpo o} upid OSID BM "E€Z20Z/1/| UO $a0I
S2UDINSUI YHDBY Ul 3SD210UI %01 D POjOWINSS OM
ECOT Ut % 1b'8
O} %8/’ 6 WO SSDBIOIP {IIm BJD2 Y] S, AIDICN Y|
10BDUDW ¥H awWi-ind e
ISy SiydiouD swy-ing e
PappL aIb suolised Buimo|ioy ay|
‘diysIaquIsl NVMS JO asnDoaq pasoaioul Apunonyubis
SADY SPDOPIOM 3SOYM Sisiipidads Loddns ucyos)jod
Buysixe 10§ papnout UBSQ SADY SINOY HD|S [DUOIPPY
‘AW Joy SjaiBya way; Bupioul
"aam Jad sINOY Og IS0 JO YoM S32A0|dWs AID)
‘aspaIUL B %z of dn 1o a|quibis 3i0 pup
9508.0UI BUlAll O {SOD %y D BAI8D3I |Im saaAoidwa |y
$js0D aakoduwig

SIHOITHOIH J4NLIAN3dX3

‘sjuswIADd 953y J8A0D 0} 8oUDjJng

punj puD SUOKNQLIUOD 19d0|9ASP JO LIOKDUIQLIOD D
asn fim AIpiqr 8y} 08’89 1$ Bullooy sjuswAnd jsasepu
2 1Iodpund a3ow of paunbas st AIoiqr] 8y ‘€ZA4 Uf

INIWAVJIY ALVIIH1INID 1930 910T

"juswidojeasp joyuspisal pajioddns

-411 40} JUBWIASINQUIIBI BAIBDI Of S|DadXs ApIqy

SUL "8|2AD AAS| XD} SIU} Ul pi# PUD €4 S4)) Of PLSAID
a9 M 000°68$ 19A0 "sWioou XD} Ajladold 5 108

5D JOAO BSDAIDUI %62 © JOBUXS dM “UOKINIYSUOD
MBU JO JUNOWD 8BDISAD UDYL JayBiy 0 ypm

Pau0d *(T131d) MOT LoD UCISUSIXT XD] Apadoly
By} AQ pajiuiIed 950010UI XSPU| 8Dl JBLUNSUOD %p' |
aU) ainidos Of AraT XD] 1SD) s} pasoaIoUl AIDIGIT BU]

SIHOIMHOIH IWODNI

‘suolojndod ssisAlp
0} 921alas JUBIUBIY Of BNUKUOD M Butuoy yoys o
8DIAJ9S JSWOSND) O2UDYUT  »
adualadx] 19sN Y} S}DAS(T - £ Ajouy

“saunpoddo yopayno poddns of snuuod
[l SRAS] Bulols JoABMOY ‘ZZA4 W1 AjlioLd
siu} 1o} pajeBpnq Aooyoads aio spuny ON  ©
Sjuapisay pup salug ‘suoyoZUDBIQ [0D07 $o8UU0T e
AUUNWILIOD BU} YpM JO8UUOD — Z# AjLoud

suorads Buleyiow awiy-jiny
SU} Uim 310M O} IsIHo DydoiB auwlj-in o ppy  ©
AIDIQIT BY} O SSOUDIOMY SSIDY  ©
poddns woiBoid puocyippo
10§ J404s fPNBLIq Buysixa o) sINOY § PPy ©
SSDIAJSS JINPD Ul BUO ‘SBDIAISS YINOA
Ul 9Uo - suolsod [DNBUIIIG SWi-IN) OM) UIDJUDKW  ©
ysiuods
ut BupwiwipiBoud Joy spuny ppy “sjouainl
abonBuo)-ysiupds 1o joBpng upjuDW  ©
SJUBPISIY JIUDASIH Of $93IAI9S BA0KdW|  »
AIDJQN By JO 3N ASOBIDUf ~ | # Aol

IEE0T I0J JOISH 10}
PapuUny 810 sWsYl Uoion Ajuoud d1Baioys Bumoljo) ay)

SAILFOIYd D1931viLS

‘salnjipusdxa

Buypiado ,syjuowt ¢ |SDa| |0 Jo BIUDIDY PUN}

12610} O UIDJUIDW O} JUBLU S, AIDIGH] SU} SHDYSUOLSP

Z1 % 11 s860d uo suoyosfold sounjPg pund ay)

‘punyg ysnD Buppiop

3y} puUD puny aAIasay |ppaads sy apnioU) SPUNY JBYO
‘pung ayniodio) sy o}
paBioy2 aq s puny siy of paBioyd Ajusund
S2INYIPUSAXS BININY "22UDDG PUN} B} UMOP
Buipuads Aq puny siu} BuisOo piomoy Buitiom
S| AIDIQ| By ‘SWSsAs Ajundos PUD DWYAH SH
PuD Ao} ay) Jo deaydn [pisuab pup ‘ssyddns
|DLOHUDI "IOAOCWS) MOUS ‘BuidpospuD)| ‘Buiuosd
Buipniou sasusdxe soUDUSUIbW PUB BuRing

O} PaJoUIsa) st puny Adupudjumow Bujpjng a4y o

‘puny Buyoiado
[018uB6 5, A1I0IQIT 844 S| pung aprodion syl e
saInjipuadxa

j0 Ayuolous ayy Jo) spuny omy soy A 8y
ONIINNODDY aNN4 A¥VYEN

"9Z0T 1094 J0OsI4 YBNOoIY} sa2uDjoq puny payoaloly
(Z1-11 soBod) suoyaafolg asupiog puny

‘uolsuaixe puny Buipnioul Jaquinu JunoooD Aq

IID{SP SINIPUSAXS PUD SLUODUL SSPNIOU| "WSY Ul YIDS
10} [IDjap aAlduIsEP UM {2BPNG Way suy palpiaq
(01-Z seBnd) ja6png Bupiom way aup

'SIDaA 931y} snonaid

Joj uojpunoul SANDIDAWOD Ujm sauoBaind pooiq
Aq sainjpusdxs PUR SLUODU| JO AIDWIWNS D SIS0
(1 o6pd) Aipwiwng (a6png Buptiom

SIN3INOD 30 :18vL

WO IPAUSLDM MMM |21 L-C4E/0E9

S5S09 1 ‘3(IAUSIDM ‘3ID|d PIOYDIS LSLMBT
12U1510 Apiqn JHqnd S|IAUSLDM

TOT/8/9
1040211 AIDIGIT JBWHYM APUDS
Aq paiodeid

JOAQIAAD PUD MBIASL IO}
14vdQ VN4

€202 '0€ sunr 04 Zzoz ‘L AInf

139ang9 ONDIOM
€¢0C ¥Vv3A 1vOSsId

-32-



2T0Z/8/9 1eiq |euly

T adey

51500 193(01d jende 40 SASNIU) 10U SFINYPUIUX3 553] AUy

[owr'vt |ovzevr  [ssv'zoe  [wos'zer  [(gev'asn) | [(teezse) | saJnypuadx3 ssaj awioduj|
$1503 12904 jeldeD §o 3AISA|IUY 10U SBINYPURDX] |30,
YIST68T | BOEOL8T | L0ZOTBT | SE6LS6T | OBO'S6ZT %8 %Z 9g2'ELy'Z  [%00°00T S3Jn3jpuadxy [e10)
£95 ¥8 ST 0s 000 %05- %006T 000'¢ %10 fuadupuo)
£L2'69T 6ZT°L9T 0BE'R9T 085991 004991 %T %T O£R891 %L AR5 193
- - - - - - %00 spaloid uawasaordw) jende)
Sb2'T T£9'T 000'T - E %00 sainyipuadxa 119
066'rS 8YE'LS £96'95 00429 00€°Z9 %1 %11 00569 %L SARNAN
0€8'E0T 6EQ'L6 62568 SLT'66 OTT'8rT %91 KEL 06T°TLT %v'L A311n33S 1§ 3dueuate Buip|ing
v0°LT L19'52 9£8'6T 00822 02092 %L %ZT 068°22 %0'T AIAI3S N|qNd “ISIA B AdIqNd/ud
99467 £68'82 ZEY'0T 0£5'ST 00591 %6 %S0T TE6'TE %Z'T Sujwwesdold
T60'8LT 618'Z5T 195'L5T 549981 005’58t %C % 0£8°68T %9'L Ul 's|EIIPOLIA4 ‘AfY "$H00q - sjesiey Aeuq
180°6€ 08861 04922 009'TZ 0S9°€E %ET- %9€ SEE'6Z %11 S3IIAIIS [BNIIRIUOD [PUOISSIJ0L]
S10'T L6L'T €11 SLLT 0ty %29- %6E- 00L'T %10 s3y|ddns 33 Juawdo|anaq daisn. |
SPO'ET STY'0T LS8 S/S°CT 529'82 %0 %ITT ST9°82 %T'T #el5 - uonIUE033Y g JUAWA0|3AaQ [3ULOSIS]
99¢'ZT 10822 £58'ET 00821 0SE'TT %9E %8ET 00S'0E %Z'T (Au11qer1 13 adeyded) aauesnsu)
905°SL TEE'LL 650'VTT 00692 05066 %67 %S5 0£5'61T %8y 3JueUBIRN B ‘ASLLIING ‘31BMIOS - UOLEWOINY
842°0T €64'LT 89'9Z 006’8 ovt'0T %re- %SL 00961 %9°0 3IueudU(eln B aseyaInd wawdinb3 / ainyuing
BLEVT 680°0Z 9Ty'sz SLE'ET S8L'6T %9 %SE S8Y'TE %I'T sadop |eBay/adeisoqd/salddns/Bunesadg
085ty €£5°95 20L'2s 09LVS 00528 %SZ %68 092'€0% %I'? (yjeay ‘dwo) siaslopm 1N} B3uesnsu) adAojdiuz
88102 16L'29 ¥St'y9 00092 00098 %6 %HT 000't6 %8'E (a1e3pa ‘Andas |21205) ¥II4
09€'€6 8vE'L8 ¥60'€6 00t'£0T 000°LTT %~ %b 000°2YT %S Ppung Juawainay jedidiuniy sioujl
80E°ZY6 59916 780298 00€'SE0'T | 000'E9T'T  |%L %0T 000°262't  |%t'0S saueles|
N1V 6TAS [TVNLOV OZA4 [TVNLOV TZA4 | Q3LI3(0Hd | 139ang 139ang 53140931V IUNLIANIIXI
ZZA4 ZeAd £2A4
[vS6'9€6'T | svSZ86T | 299¢Lve | 6695T1T | LVEGITZ |50 %0 SOv0ZTZ  [%00001 JWOINI TVI0L
- - 06€ 691 000°00T 00000 [%08- %08- 0000z |60 Suoneuoq 1adopreq
= %000 SPaal0l4 1LY 199
009't STE'DT TEYL - - 10/N0# 10/na# - %0070 SNOJUE[RISI SIURID
8€6°9T 6€6'9T 6£6'9T 886'6T 0v6'9T %ET %t 16402 %660 uei9 eyde) Jag
5691 £T0'9T 88Y'vT = i0/AIQ# 10/MQ# | OSP'ET %E9°0 .9 Xe), (IOW/[310H
79L'T 861'E 0502 0v9 000t %05- %Z2- 00S %Z0'0 snoaue|IsIy
908'T 9zT'T SPS'T 069'C 000'T %E9- 000'T %S0'0 S|BLOWIN /SO
SEL'T 9€0'2 604'T STI'E 000°€ %LT- %02- 0062 %210 $300§ 1507
189'T 204 509 00t 000'T 905" %ST 005 %200 sajes deg g yoog
1zz'9z LIE'6T (T4 0587 0007 %05~ %9t~ 0007 %500 1s3J81Y]
- 289 0052 %00L %EGT 000°0Z %460 spund 311
¥29 96T [411 001 005 %001~ 9%00%- E %00°0 5334 J3Y30
v69°61 £8Z'ET - - B i0/NIa# E %00°0 5334 a5 Papuax3
98€'L 866t £06 008’y 005'T %EET %t 0005 %¥Z'0 1da)
€SR'6ER'T | 9TV'668'T | v9P'BE6'T | ¥BZ'SR6'T | Z06'686'T  |%C %E ¥89'SE0'Z  |%00'96 saxe| Apadoid
TWNLIV 6TAS [TVNLIV 02Ad [TVNIOV TZA4 | Q3LI3fOUd |  L3vang 13909 €2A4] awodu S3HUODILYI INOINI
TTAS 2TAd 3 12103 J0 %

133png €74 01138png ZzA4 38ueya %

_

198png £7A4 03 pa1IBlosd ZzA4 93ueys %

£20Z ‘0€ unf Y3noayl ZzZ0Z ‘T AN - AYVINWINS L13DANE DNINYOM AYVHEIT ITHANIHYIVM

-33-



20Z/8/9 yeaq teuyy

z 98eg

sadiey2 Ha14[ 009
(339 “Huissazoid-axd 'saseds
wawade|dal ‘adey ‘sjage| ‘sapoaseq) saljddns Buissaoold| 000‘TT
1926 z21'8 LEXTT 006'8 009°6 %12 %0E 009°13 Yo Juy; d |eisalep - Juesadg 10-¥909
losT'T B9E'T £66 01S°T 0002 %LE- %L1 (Z2Z0z woly aiueyd ou) O£ 'ZTS 154) U0 %SE'0 | 092'T 0927 I dwio) Juaiuiof n 10-0109
|8BT'0L 16429 Sb'v9 000°9Z 00098 %6 %¥T sadem $5043 40 %59°Z | 000'76 000°v6 asuddx3 voId 10-6009
09E'€6 BYE'LS $60°€6 00¢'Z0T 000°LTT % %t %Ip'8 1) €20T * %82°6 3Nk 7Z0Z | 000'TTT 0001t asuadx3 JyNI T0-8009
!
|
rmm.ﬁ 06t'TZ T£9'€C 002's2 00092 %0 %E 000'92 00052 2IUBUAUIEW - sdLejes T0-£009)
! 9Z9°1E 766°0S 00€'95 000°€8 %pT %ES 000°E0T 000’€0T Juyaie - salEjES) 10-4009
DLTEET |9t6°szT £85'88 001°'08 000'€6 %S- %0T 00088 000'88 S3NAIS |BIIUYIDY - Saliejes 10-2009
S9'8L |seg'o8 1S6°0L 00006 000°t0T %Lt %6E- 000°5S 000's5 11 - sapejes 10-9009
'STL€9€ ~ |ozagss TY9'SEE 000°T0t 000°TSY %¥ %LT 000°0LY (13 S3IIAIBS J||qng - S3LIE[ES 10-5009
999VET £09'821 Zrb'STT 009202 000222 %LT %82 000°09Z 000092 SajAlas JaquIaly - Salejes 10-2009
914’602 STE'BIT Zv8°9LT 00T'08T 000'vST %EE %9E 000°562 000512 uanesIs|uIWpY - SaIejes 10-1009
]
SUNLIONIAXT M
__
¥56°9£6°T BYS'LBE'T | z99'zeT'2 669'SZ1‘Z LPE'SIL'T S0¥'0Z1'T SOY'02L'T JWOONI TVL0L
06691 000007 000°00T %08~ %08 00002 00002 suopeuoq Jadajanaq 10-006%
009'T STEOT 099 - - 10/A1Q# - - SNOUB|RISIA SUeID 10-208%
899°ET - - - " Jueg diysiaquiapy Fojeed sTIvy 10-608Y
| SIv TS
‘8E6'91 6€6'9T 6E69T 88661 0v6'9T %ET %y si a3ed Juesd eydes sad 960 pT 03 paseasoul uonejndod | 1607 162°02 wieg eydey 14 10-008¢%
[FEE]]
_ S6°0T ET0'9T 88t 0T - - io/anae  |io/nas pieme 1ad) saauney (e1snA Apuns ;g SLI33U0J J3WWNS | OEY'ET OEVET Jueig xej 310N /|210H 10-00LY
9£'T 36T°E 0S0°T [I£] 000°T %05- %22- 005 005 SNOBUE|ADSIN 10-009¢
190§T ZI'T SUS'T 0697 000'T %E9- uoiEpunoy aiedng WoJj uonnquisip | 000t 000"t SjEHOWaN /SIS 10-00SY
ISELT 9€0°T 60LT STI'E 000'€ %LT- %0Z- 0052 005't sjaog 3507 10-05bb
1891 20L 509 oor 000'T %05- %S¢ Ajuo syooq papAdas | 00s 00S sajes 8eq 13 yoog 10-00bt
lTez'or LIEGT 62LT 058'T 000'z %05- %9t~ SaleJ }52J9)ul paseasnap | 000°T 000't ates0dio) - 3sasagu| T0-00EY
| - 2789 005°T %00L 1UBWIO[3AIP (eUaP|SAl J0f JUSWSINGWIAI JL | 000°0Z 000°02 spuny 411
29 961 [113 00T |oos %001~ %00T- = s §334 19410 T0-910%
i¥69'6T _ |estEr E - |- 10/Na# a5 S 5334 asf) papuag 10-5T0Y
198€°L 866°Y £06 008t 00S'T HEET %¥ 000°S 13)do) 10-0T0V
'of z - - 5 00°0 3dueuajuiely 13 Supjing saxe yoeq L0-200¢
IZEL SE - 5 00°00T Jes0dio) saxe] yoeq 10-Z00
0Zt'L6 tsT0T LEV'TOT 655°S 815'S %00%- %00T- - = 0070 3IUeU3UelAl 1§ BUlp|ing pajaaT sexe] £0-T00%
TS.SE 208'96L'T 066°9€8'T SZL'6L6'T 68EVB6°T %E %E $89'SE0T V89°S€0'C 00°007 d10) pajaa saxel 10-100V
JWOINI
TWNDVETM | WADVOZAI | TADVIZA | GADaONdZzM | E9Gn8TiM | s SIION] 15InDay | 1390nd £2A1 uoidinsaa "3 pung
199png £744 01 198pna 7ZA4 2Buey2 % _ 135004 43vis 8 3unazy
. q QIZHNIL ETAS
_ 198png £ZAd 01 p31(01dZZA4 28ueyd %
I | I

€202 ‘0€ dunr Y3noiyy Zz0Z ‘T AINT - £39ANG ONINYOM WAL INI AYVHEIT ITIANIHHYM



T0Z/8/9 yeJq leuld

€ aded

TEB'T

€0V'T

008'T 000°

%05-

%I

{swurrd pajusjun sapnjaul aseaj Ja1d0d UILIPE M3U 3snedaq
pP23npad {53502 upd 13d) s3oes3uod asueuduiew s2dod

005'T

T0-£609

(sauenua z} J3uno) 3|doad 231nosuas

000°s

WAWING3 3 INUINS SNOIURHIISIN

000'T

0L’

625’y

6601

N 000°0T

%0~

i0/NIO#

{ansasay [epads) saseyaing - wawdinbz/amuing

11-0609

(paJinbas ued ejep
10 JB[N{[39 OU ‘M YU 3N TRIPBN [B190S/3UR3NIBI) Buoyd!

00Z'T

(asueuajusew/supid payuiiun
S3PN|IUL 'SZ/E YINCIYL oW/ L0tS - Liwpy - 109€) 3sed] 1aido)

006y

(€2/% 4Bnos ow/Z9T$ - YINOA - 105¢) 25e3) Ja1do)

000°C

€258

ZEV'OT

1526

001’9 [

%6

HEE

001’8

saseyaung - Juawdgnbi/ainyuing

10-0609

SLTT

(4

890°F

SL6 00E'T

%EL-

%E

$32130U |EJ0 |

000T

000‘Y

Jugysygnd - Bunessdp

10-5L09

sodplile) Jauoy

00SE

‘219 ‘sadim Juiuea)d uauds ‘1. passaldwod (SNOAUE|BISHA

005

ov9'y

BEB'T

L65'Y

00Z°E 000t

%0

%S¢

saddng uopeweiny - Jupesadp

10-2£09

NvMS] 39y fedo.g

{yluows 1ad 05§ @ WN03Ie ¥AQ LE) Joj 88Jeyd adiAIRS
‘ywow i3d 65 @ Aed aaiisod sy sapN|IUL) $334 yueq

00Z'T

-35-

|ed’ed ‘fedoid ‘asenbs) saa4 Fuissalold pied 1pas)

000t

19

655

LTS

006 000'T

%0ST

%8LT

005°C

s34 yueg - Juesadp

1T0-1£08

Fuippaiys

005

diyssaguay snid gn|d s,wes

SP1

sa11ddns a3yja Jayi0

005°T

{rz0z Ul smauay) dweis + 334 AJeIoN

}2015pJea pue pasojod duipnpul Jaded Ado)

0002

T66°T

S08°Z

PETE

STHE ShZ'y

%12

SpT'y

soy|ddng ad1440 - SupesadQ

10-0L09

{uonensiuiwpy} snoaue(3sig

($5°0$ @ 00T} s5ujjlew pJed Aseuqy auyuo

(55°0$ @ 00) 53110N Suluig SIN 7§ padeueq

£$+09=0W/5 3ulpus1 SO0 T

(Yiuows 1ad Og a7eI1aAR) JAJ(EN JUIPISIY MIN

SL9S @Y SIPUISMIN

sjaqe)ul/|eIuas aujyIew samog Asulld

Yluow/ops - Isiu/s|liq Alyiuoin

834 Jwad |IelN Hing

8Z'v

SU6'E

6Y6'E

SLY'E S6LY

%L

%SE

069"y

adeysod - Supesadg

10-6909

SNOJUER|JIISIN

[x0q/ps$@saxoq T} @2uapuodsaliod
Bujq pue padewep snoaue|jaasiw 104 sadoj3AUT 110N

SDIIALIS JOQUIDIA 18 Sped! UCHEIS ueds
‘$393Y3 435 10§ {YIR3 OES @ Sax0q p) sadim UIBIISYINOL

(lewwa] ajes jo jul0d) Jaded 3d1223y y10013an|g

(%0q/00T5@ S3x0q g Jatled 101333y jBwLIdY )

uoneldiu NYMS 03 anp paanpal 'sway

111 009 404 pX §Z$@ xoed 4ad OST S|2qe| wall) siqe 11

{dunnas NymS ‘spioy) Jaded 1diaaal anisaypy

0057

STET
WALV 6TAS

8L6
WALV 0ZAd

v06'E
TNLY TZAS

0052 S’y

%Le-

K744

GIIIMOUd TZAY | 1390N8 TTAS

'y

198pNng £7A4 013198png ZZAS ABueyd %

T

T

128png £2Ad 01 pa12{01dZEAL Tueyd %

I

I

I

SIION

15303y
139an4d 44v1s
Q3ZINIL €ZAI

0S5

uone[nasi) Juissadoid |23 - Supelado

10-5909

139008 €TA3

uopidpasag

aLei)
“p pung

3 Unody




220Z/3/9 yeaq jeuy

v 98eq

€92T

LIv'T

8LY'T

000t

%ST

10/NCH

000's

000's

dwo) s,usunjiom

10-0019

sSnoaue|(32siA

000'T

9UBUIIUIBL [ENUUE LUONEIS UeSa|dwWs Say |

00T°T

(€) Jamoy uio) ‘(7) asea|ay 1ud/ped) ‘Indiaded i saL

0002

(&3] s1odsioy 10y suejd a31ni3s uoIeag 3|IqoNAuLds

008'T

{ans1a591 ‘puane
“MMM) 0{UNUILIOY JO} AJEIYTIAD 1SS PLEPURIS § DN

oov

5333 dIYSIFqUIBN NYMS

000°0€

LXPT 198400 IUEuIuew Emummwco_._&

006°T

(S9.1) uonnjos Bunuyd ss2janm HINIYJR

ooy

{001] sanoy predaid juelnsuo? ssomiaN

000°0T

(1eaA-g) azaasgdaag

000°s

(3wnjoa
98e.03s uo paseq sadieyd Ajyuow) s1aauas jo dnydeq pno|d

000'€

{4eaA-) 131N0J 19UIYUI JOJ 3IBIUOI JANUIEWS 0ISI

005°T

}SOIY Pedl J0j JU3WATLURW PNo|3 esI 03

(141

[2] $432Y2-4435 104 dURUAIUIEW |BNUUE I3]-UBD

0512

36-

CEV'EY

6EE'ZS

L9B'SL

000'vS

002'09

%T

%l

0LE'TS

T0-66( .

(s3ui0d 553008 s suoddns) youmsadp3 Alnbiqn aseiday

000°T

sjulod sSady OYd-JV Liun dejday

00T'T

s1ajuid wea) uawadeuew adeyday

S29T

sjuawade|das Jodsioy im g

{waysis auoyd) J2inoy 2iewadpy adejday

0052

1JB15 123195 10y J0j|UOL [enp 10 Jadie]

00S'T

SL/SA/SY/S 40§ ._wuc_._mI«:wEwum_nw.. 4

E14

{€T 20e)das) sdopjsaq aqnd

(Avedes
1IN} 03 UINJ3J UBYM/N) SId ANgnd J0j SIOHUOIA UIIISIPIM,

syusdwze|doy adeiols SYN

00Z°T

(uun £707) J2M135 150H 3de|day

00S'E

(3uIsuadi| + asempJey) Janoy NDI 22e1day

052t

(suun 9Tz ‘sz 9vejdad) sdopysaq yels

000°07

SIS'TT

6v9°L

$800Z

00Z‘y

OST'ET

%LTT

%EES

0041w

3SEYIN - UORBWOINY

TT-8609

{sa0189p
jda sapnjaui) 133SIA

3jiqow ‘s3ods Joy 4Oy S

000'Z

S33IA3P 31O MAN

005°T

£L6°E

L18Y

EV2'S

009T

008

%SE

005'E

ASEYIINd - uoEWOINY|

10-8609

SNO3UE|3ISIN |

000'2

2JeMas SUIPE3Y 1BWLING YIelSurag

002’1

{unupy) |emauay uondlasqns sdunasy wooz

(uonduasqns |enuue J3asn-5) snid IUuQ SHoOGYIIND

SOIA[BUE LIM LIOYM)

(Aenuue pied ow/0ES) Od
$31ydess so) uodduasgns AUNS aAREaI) 2qopy / Sunasiep

3)iNg 031UNWWO)

0009

SMIIASY 1§ JN0S BjAiL 138

0002

$8S'9T
e
VALV 6TAd

925'ZT

VNV 0ZAS

v38'Z1
WALV TTAS

001°9T

006'ST

QILIT0Nd ZTTAS | 1390N8 TTA

%8T-

%61~

—

4

L

123png €744 01 189png 7ZA4 3Sueyd o

_

198png £2Ad 03 pa1dRf0sdZZAS 38ueyd %

1

SILON

000°€Y

3JeMHOS - uoewony

10-9609

15anbay
139008 44v1S
Q3ZINIL ETA

130an8 ETAY

uopdussaq

“Pg puny
g Junony




'z0T/8/9 yeia reuy

g 38eq

JEUOnMAASUI - A12120S [E3LIOISIH 3]|IAUBLIEM

|EUORNUISUL - 32J3WIIOY JO Jaquiey]

‘doc) pooypiiyd AET 3))InUdIIE UDIEIYAM

diysIaquiawl |euciInyfisu| - 321N0S YH

diysiaquaw jeuonnsul - SY11Y

diysiaquiaul [euognInsuI - INOJV1

[sdysiaquiaw;
|euossad 3340)dwa ou) diysiaquiagy [euonIsy) - v

052$) WHS - 195euey uH

0S¢

(82$) \Nd + (0STS) Vv :428euepy SuiBojeled 1 suonsinboy

{8251 v1d + [0STS] Vv :4aTeue sadniag Jaquiapy

F144

_37-

[£95] wsnY + (295) vSTvA + (053]
ISV + (8£3) V1d + (05TS) Vv :498eue ssa1m1as 2qngd

oty

18£5) ¥1d + (0ST$) Vv 210133110

F144

S66'

9E8°Z

EEVT

S£9°C

SLL'T %LT

%TT

[EI53

Sanp jeis - ad

10-0ST9

[s9s4n0] ST eawing-Auuay auiy

005°T

suonela)
+Aun3as 7§ + yiomiap viL dwiod) sauof uesung

0o

(595103 { ‘8183411137 YL1] IWS [1BD

001'T

SLS

0SL

000'€

Wawasinquigay uonini/uels - ad

106419

$1eal) 'sayed ‘siamoys ‘spie)

00

JuaA3 uoiienaiddy yeis

005'Z

siealy ‘sayaunt uonenasddy yeis

005'T

|800°€

bSS'T

06

|00z°T

006'E %ST

%SLT

005y

uopepasdidy yers - ad

10-8¢19

STT

L144

£144

005t %0

%L99

532342 punosiyeq pue Fuisianpe sapnpuj

00S°T

005'T

Aupinuay - yuswdojaaaq [auuosIag

T0-9v19)

LT

BEL'TS

TET'6V

0S2'ES

%LT

%8

('{emauas ueid yym

BpIIIeI 01 £2/T/1 anNaaya sadueya (y) "suncady ssuiaes
YeaH o} uonnquiuoel sakodwa sajeurwy3 -adelanod
Allwey 0 uonippe siqissod ym siuedditied Jo Jaquinu
PAsE3JIU] “JEIUSP PUB UDISIA ‘3}] 10§ asEINUN %0T pue suejd
(€213 10§ I5EIIDUN %G T SAWNSSY ‘(Ajsuey/p|iya/asnods sy
9%05/%05 pue aakojdwa 10§ 3%0T/%06) Sueyd 1503 1samo ayl
uo paseq Junowe Jseyop ey e o3 uleys wniwaid saguey)

00026

000'L6

3j1/yieaH - asuesnsuy

10-8019

00S'9L

{tz0zZ u1 smaual) puog Liejon

spuog - adueInsu|

T10-2019

adexoed ui papnput

ejjasquin - aduesnsug Ajgjiqern

10-v019

85°L

$80'6

0008
%00

-

10/Ma#

YEIp [BUy
10§ J3GUINU [eUl YUMm 31ePdn f1m - {£J314183 MaU) Jedh T

$40329410/$4891440 -~ oueinsuj Ayjiqer

T0-€0T9

wnjwald Jo syiuow gT “Jaiiies mau

005'0€

99¥°ZT
YNV 6TAL

612°ST

TYNLIV OZAS

ZLL'YL

NV 1ZAd

00828

Q3103r0ud ZZAd

0SEVT %ET

T

%BET

1390N49 ZZA4

4

129png €744 03 329png zzA4 28ueyd g
I -

ﬁ 138png £ZA4 01 pardaloidzzAd 3ueyd % _

S3LON

153n03y
139an4d 1ivis
Q3ZINIL €ZA4

i

3deyzed ajuesnsuy

10-Z019

&
(]
e
£
@0
z

uonduaseq

w3 punyj
'8 WNOMDY




T0Z/8/9 yeiq jeuiy

9 afeq

LES 191 £8 k144 00S %0 %81 s3)|ddns Funaaws 's1ea1) ‘SaNed ‘'SIaMOY 'SPIed | 005 00S SNOJUE||BIS|W I9ISN.] - Ad T10-9519
SNOJUEIAdSIAL | 05T
[3] 662 - 0st 0SL %L9- 0s2 uonenodsues; asisni] - ad T0-SST9
(s3935n41 ¢) J3uuiqg aaxsniL INODV1 | 0ST
(59935n1] 7| doysyiop 831sniL v | 0ST
(saa3sna 7} dnyeay aanejsizal vl | ST
S3UIITW ‘SIBUIGIM ‘SIBUILIDS SNOIUE[BISHA :S3IISNL) | 005
Leld 98T 0€ 0SLT 0S0'E %69~ %9t 0Sé sduiyasw aaysniy - d T0-¥519
B IST = 0ST 0sT - hd Sanp aaysnil - ad TO-£ST9
|9AB1) 2)M}ISU| [BUOKEN JSTV S82tAIBS dlqnd | 0S
THupunsas
s8ugzeaw uosiad-ul |1e30)) JUIWISINGWIBL afea|iw [esauan| 05Z°T
72T 890°T 0s 00t't 0SL°T %8E- %12 o00L't uaileModsued] yeys - ad 10-2579
uondiasqns Sujues) SsaUSSa|AWoH | 052
{1ie3s 11e] odxa NvMmS | 052
S3uRa3IN PaISoH [ 00§
STUNBAN Hels-1Iv| 005
3J(AJ3S U] pels | 005°Z
)
80UaJaju0) [enuuy v| :1a8euepy SuiSojee) g suonsinbay | 57z ”
323N05 YH Yinolyy Suluier] i
awaBeuepy asieads suonedunwiwon g Sugayen | gos
32Jn0s ¥H Yyanosy)
8ujurel) Jusuwiadeuery :1a8eueyy Buiojele) g suonIsInbay | 00
32Jn0S ¥H
y3nosy) Supujesy Juawiadeuey 1aeuely sadnRs Jaquwaw | 005
ERILTT
YH y3nosy1 Surules | Juawadeuey iadeuiy saawas Agnd | 00S
334n0S ¥H YInaiy) Sujuies) JuawaSeue 1iadeury yH | 000°T
s3unaswW
‘sleuiqam ‘sieu) 1139511 210133410 Y3 O JUEISISsY | Q05
JIINOS YH YEnoay} Buiuiel | Juawadeuey 11030310 | 005
S3ull93W ‘SJeUIGaM ‘SIBUILAS SNOBUER|BISHA -103931d | 000°T
uddw ‘sieujqam ‘siew 1199 211 | 052
(S£z$) siean ‘{Scg$) BuBpot (osys) uonensidal
BIU3JUOD - (T} INUISU] [BUONEN DSTY 1SIDALIS IGNd | 00T'T
(2] acuas94u0] [BnuuY Y| S3DNAIAS JNGNd | 0SS
~ sdupaaw
‘SIBUIGAM 'SIBUILIDS SNOBUE|(2ISIW :Sa2IS Mqnd | 00L
sBuliadw ‘sieulgam ‘sieupuwas snoaue)|aosiiy :Bunexiew | 0oz
() @2uaI34u0) plemio] 3ulydeay :saInIaS JAGWIN | 0ZE
sdunasw
'S1BUIQIM ‘SIRUILLIS SNOBUBIIISIN 1592135 Jaquialy | 0oL
(1) 22uaIagu0) psemioy Suiydeay :Suidojeier 1§ suonsNboy 09t
sTunaaw 'sieuiqam
‘SIBUILBS SNO3UR||9ISI FuiBorerer 19 suoisinbay | gop
£91's ZEL'D 096' 005'C 05691 %bT- %S6 559'eL slugeaw yeis - g4 TO-1ST9
WLV 6TAS IVIDVY 0ZAL WALV TTAY Q3D3Ir0Yd TTAd | 1390NE ZTAS ) SILON|  1S3N0D3Y 1390N8 £TA4 UoRdIsag g pung
_’ 128pna £ZA4 01 198png ZzZA4 93ueyd x|_ ﬁ 1390n19 44V1S 12 Junody
T T Q32INILE €ZAd
_’ 138png £244 01 pa1dafoigzzad 8ueyd o
| | |




202/8/9 yeaq jeury

£ adegq

aiemy Lieiqr] 'ys() sauaiafay ‘Suuiea]
UjpPa3YUIT ‘$S9.d BPLIL PIOM ‘SPI0IaY 31|qNd :SNOAUEHRISIA

00L°L

1s3np a8eiay g uonip3 Aieign Aisasuy :sanboly

026'C

ERELE

SL6'T

Awapedy aydN

002’z

SSBJD [BSIAAILN

0007

adendue] oduep

SL6'T

esriauly
ul 8)17 32e|g ‘UonIB}|0D 0FeAyD ‘GnH 38eual HJuegsman

0ECT'Y

aseydund dnoug NvMS - 00583

0£0'9

vTY'ZE

19E'ET

006°LZ

006'TE 000'sZ

%¥T

0E0°TE

suoyjdisosqng JpusBut - sjeuAeN Aesqp

T0-¥929

|£ZY'ot

L6£°0T

Lyzot

5788 00Z's

%L

%0

(seysiany| ssadedsman g sauizefiey

0088

0082

S|EJ)pOLIa - S|EHAEW Aeiqp]

T0-1929

00001

00007

086'T 000°E

‘uads Ajny uaaq sey puny siyl

[sowan eq|y) syooga - siepaley esqy

ST-vSZT9

ANIPIBAQ)

00002

$300qa|quIng|

004

BjdiooH

000'0Z

-39.

21022

ErV'TE

0SZ'LE 000'SE

%91

%6

oL'oy

$ya0ga - sjeuslely Aeaqp

T0-¥529

SI3l g sopEZng

0007

5400qoIpny

0027

SN

Q0€

SAAQ

005°T

7T’y

E0V'E

ZOLE

SL8'E 000's

%0

%62

W eiqn

Yinap - s|e

| ihing | o

10-1529

)

00S

SyooqoIpny

005y

SaAd

000°0T

968°'vT

TIES

OSE‘ET 000°0Z

%S¢

%ZT

000°sT

JENS|AD|PNY HNPY - S[EHaIEW AreIqH

10-0529

|6TE1Z

NPy Hunoj

005y

ysiueds

005°T

uondty

00802

UOIILUON

000°0T

9TY'EE

[k

TEE'9Z

0£0°8€ 008'9€

%0

$§00g YINOA/UBIpIY) - S[euale iy Aieagy]

T0~-8¥29

ysiueds

0052

uonaly

00592

uonoyuoN

00S'€Z

OEY'SS

908°6€

LB0"6E

52¥°0S 005°2S

%0

%

00825

53004 YNPY - Sjeustel Lielgn

T0-£bZ9

Jooqpuey 23/ojduwa jo mainai fauiony|

00S'7

Fupzewyouaq apesd feg

000°S

SES'9T

00s

- 00S'L

%0

i0/nas

00s'L

SJUe}{NSLA) - [eNJIRINI0)

T0-1129

0T8°L

STLL

005°Z

059°L 059

%t

%¥

(€ 3o 7 seal} wawaalfe sad

5261

ST6'L

MPNY - [EN19E13U0D

T0-0T29

swayshs Juewalieueyy anbiun

05¢

5SS

40T

0sZ 000°'T

%SL-

%0

0sz

Asuady uopaaljo) - emdeue)

10-9029

[Huppes yov “fedqam ‘BWRGIM) Aojieq

0002

(8340) Moday [eenIdy 57 GSYD

0002

(yiuow J3d pg55) sanAlag Jununody

099

E0T'ET

IST'TT

SLL'TT

00028 00S°€T

%8~

%0Z-

0996

AURUNOIY - [ENIEHRLOY

10-50Z9

S5
e
WNLVY 6TA4

oSy
——
TWNLV 0TAd

BEI'Z
]

WNLY T2A4

00£°T 000

%0

%SET

000"y

1akmen - [enpenua)

T0-00Z9

Q310370dd TTAd | 139aN8 ZTAS

4

_ 129png €244 03 198pna 7ZA4 d8ueYI % _
1 I

_ 199png £zA4 01 pa133(014ZZAS DueYd 3% %

1

SILON

153034
1390n8 VLS
Q3ZIW3L £2AF

13940n9 £2Ad

uopduasag

"3 puny
8 N0y




20Z/8/9 ueiQ |euty

g adeq

S¥S

‘Juads Alny uaaq sey puny syl

(sowa1 eq)y) snoaueqaasy - 3d1as dyqng

ST-£T€9

swesdoud sy

00§

WeIH01d SSed 2INJUIADY WNISAN

05T

Z6T'T

SHS

oz

0sT

0s9

%0

HEEE

059

SNOBUE||9IS|IA - DIIAISS JNjqNd,

TO-ETE9

Y2e2(008'8

00Z'2$ @ s4auenb p - sa01013s udisaq siydesn paroenuo)

uonduasqns Jauapioys yu ArNg|ose

(sassaippe |lewa goO°0T 03 dn) PEIUCY JUBISUOT 008

sadew 32015[0sT

uoidiasqns eAuEd [0pT

(212 “wiy uneuiwier 1101 T[ose

‘s1apfoy a1phaze ‘sayddns) sjieiazew Sunaysepn SNOJUR(IISI

SNUSA SS3UISNQ JO FUISNOY M3U J€ SIUIAS 3313|009

'8 193W SIIAIAS JAqUIBIN/SUNDUEBIA § IO P - SIUAT YIRIRNO

-40-

SU3d - SABMB3AID 059

synosiq Sop ‘Apued ‘10ap jeoy - apeleq|0os

SIUBAD YIEIIING 73 SIDPIOYPIED MAN - SABMEIAID [0DZ'Z

51500q ‘spe ¥00qade4 05T

Siaquiaw fjers mau 4oy jasedde odoy/suiys|oos

608°E

STS'VT

T18°8

00L'TT

0LS'0T

%vy

%0E

061'ST

AIpiang/ud - 2Jaas aqng

TO-11€9

SUBSUI PIBOQ YIMpues ‘syJewnjooq ‘sainylolg

009

[topuan mau) 008'2S@ b - 19N3jsMIN

00Z'TT

696°TT

90v'0T

¥58'6

058°0T

00B°ET

%1~

%6

008'TT

JuRusg - 39IAIS dlIqnd

T0-80€9

L

1143

2y

00T

000°T

%SL-

%0ST

suoJye

3jliAuaLiem Aq 150| S|BLI3IRW 10} S3LJE.GY JAYIO O} SPUNgaY

0s2

0SZ

5333 /s3uld/spunyay - 3a|AIaS d1Iqnd

10-50€9

(1UE19 Xe| [930H] S3aune (BIISNA ABpunS

SS9°E

(1ueJ9 xe} (210K SUOWIWIOD 3y} UG SK1adUC)

9.L°6

695°9T

LI'LT

04901

OLE'E

i0o/na#

%662

TEY'E]

Xy [S101N/[210H - 32135 J1iqNnd

T0-0€9

Aujwwesiord laypp

0007

SWWIWIOW 3 4008 000T

00S'T

dutpeay Jawuing

0002

513)u35314 YNPY FUNOA 3 YINOA

00S'T

SWeLdo.d NPy SUNoA @ YINOA

D00'E

261'9

06T'Y

1519

SZ6'S

000'8

%ET

%S

000'6

Juuwesosd yanoy, - adiniss qnd

T0-70€9

Sulwwesiold 10

000'T

ysiueds u) Junuwesdorq

000'T

Suiwieidold aAlssed/yseanng

0oy

€3 ZT$® Su0IssnIsip yaoq 1

0ST

S35Ua3]| BIAOI

059

Aiygnd pue sazud Juipeay aswwing

00

L

sayddns + yaea 0pgs @ sweadoad g7

009's

|s00'2
| ——
NIV 6TAd

0689
—
WNLIV 0ZAd

T19'€
VNIV TZA4

SLT'9

008

QILI3I(0Ud TTAd | 13DANG ZTAL

%I

%1S

4

_

m_._ﬂ

193png £ZA4 03 198png 7744 33u:
T

 —

_

138png €744 03 pa1Iaf0IdZZAd Tueyd 5

I

S310N

153ND3Y

439an4 44vis
Q3ZIN3LI EZA4

005'6

upwiwesdoid npy - a31A13s Aqng

T0-00€9

4390N8 £2A3

uopdussaq

“pa3 pung
B wno»y




'T0Z/8/9 Weuq |eury

88T°E

99'€

888's

0062

00001

%09~

%8E

6 afed

{p3pasu 3dd
$53)) 'saiiayleq ‘supjdeu ‘sjamo) Jaded ‘deos ysip ‘xauaaly

000"t

000y

sa)ddns jeioyuer|

10-T1¥9

UoNE1S UEISHO0Y 10} 51503 TUINES QIOSqY

00S

[sow/6zZ5 158307 'SOW/GLpS
HIoMIaN AIN3U3) sioulfj ‘souws/SZES 1RLY) 3aulau)

006'ZT

(sowf08$
yededay 'sow/00Z$ S10d/aHuURID) saul| suoydajay,

00Y'E

SYT'ET

180°ST

vZ6'ST

00T°LT

00€'LY

%E-

%~

[

auoydajat)

10-0T¥9

606°6E

9S8°vE

ZL6'6T

00E'SE

000'LE

%t T

%61

{enuos mauj aseasnu) ajel

000°Cy

0002y

ApEpea

T0-60v9

316

SEL

045

008

000'T

%0T

%05

asealaul et

002'T

002t

1amasf1a1em

T0-80v9

Sa[noq JagIpILny

008

$493)14

059

2dueujutew |esauany

000'L

srb'T

T16'82

753

0st'L

05¢'s

%T9

%ET

X

JVAH

L0-L0%9

lozsez

98€'8T

vS2TZ

STE'LT

000°0Z

%0

%ST

000°0Z

Q0002

|eAOWwaY Moug

£0-30t9

816

9£9°9

0056

000'2

%9E

%0

005'6

0056

seg

T0-E09

T050T

0052

%0

i0/AIQ#

wa)sis esauwie) ALNJI3g

005°L

00§°C

{antasay jepads) Ajundag

TT-4029

2IUBUIUIRW |BI3UID)

00S't

[06$@9) 1531 J0jUaAL4 MO|PIEY

00s

sijefa) pue uoRdadsu; - Wayshs Japjuuds aig

000t

-41-

duidieydas pue uondadsul saysinduixg

009

famy]
1o} 191eNB/ES ‘Jejding 1oy Jalenb/oggs) SuLoluow wiely

004°C

siiedaJ g uondadsu) wieje ay Supnp (SLO) SS3IIL 10JeAd[3

008

syeday g uondasdur - wieje aily

004

860°'L

913

1986

SLY'S

0S5°0T

%L

%v8

Apndag

£0-20¢9

Juawdinba snoaue|adsiy

000'T

sise||eq ‘sqng

000'T

9157

EOU'T

Ev9

00€

0002

%0

%L9S

saj|ddng - asueuayuiey

£0-T0v9

s11edal SNOBUe|jRISIA

000°0T

(2zAd P213]3ui03] J0(121%3 JUIPIINg JO JUILIELS

{ZZAd woyy pawsea] sioop Aijua yes aseyday

000°91

SJOOP Aijus dzejday

00072

(bZAd UL USIAR] M “ZzAd Ul jeied] 11edal 101 Jupjied

acmeum_mw._\:mme._ MOPUM

00002

000'€T

000'9S

%LZ

%961

00083

@ueuauien

T1-00v9

SNOBUE||3JSHAL

000°€

[¥zA4 Ut uleSe op |im ‘ZZAd Pa3a|dwod] Huneod|eas,

TyZAd urujede
wadsui |1m ‘ZZA4 pa1dadsur} 2sueuaiuew uonied ajqeaopy

(1184 8 uuds “ea 0ES| a3uBUAUIEN JOOY

008'T

1011U0Q)) }sad

009

{1eaA /XY - USIA Jad 0gS$] 103eA3(2 J0 uonIadsu| Au)

05¢

[sequd g SI1L0] sauauinbay apo) JifneipAH 101eA3)3

000"t

(4eah/xz) 1593 2unssaad Jojenaly

000'E

JOBIJUQD JOJBAD|T

0009

{1eald/XT) dulysem mopuip

005z

$331A195 Juluea|) jerdads + 1oenuo) Jujuea))

00092

€8E'6Y
WNLOV 6TAL

$0T'ZE

VALV 0ZAS

ZI6'SE
WNLIV TZAS

00E'SE
@3103roHd TZTAL

00Z'9E

%L1

%07

052Tv

aduetAUle

10-00v2

1390aN49 TTAS

4

r 193png €744 03 398pNg 7ZAd 38Uy %

— 193png £244 03 pa13l0IdZTAS 5ueyd % _

1

S3LON

153038
139an4 13v1S
a3IZINALI EZA

139CN8 £TAI

uopduasag

3 pung
1§ JUnany




€0Z/8/9 34210 jeuy

o1 a%eq

«
-
1
orr'vy [ ovz'evt | ssv'zae [vac'zer [leer’aet] I | |(te8zsel |(veszsel | S2Jn3jpuadx ssaj awodu)| ]
| v15'268°T SOE'0VE'T L0T'0T8T SE6'LBE'T 08b°S62'T %8 %T 9EZ'ELY'T 9ET'ELY'Z $3Jnypuadx] je10)
[
1SZ°0T - - - E UBIY SNSU)) 10-20L9/
€95 8 (3 [ 000'2 %05- %0061 000T 000'T Asuaduguo) 10-0099
6Z1°ZE 06€'6Z 085'92 00£'9Z 0€8'ET 0£8'EC (1sa.a3u)] 3uswiedsy 1goa 10-T€S9
£LL'69T 000'SET 000°0bT 000°0bT 000°0vT %P %¥ 000'SHT 000'ST (1edpupd] Aeday 1qaq T0-0£59
5199044 uawanodusj [E31de) 10-0259
- - - D 5393[014 uawanoidw jeydes 110259
| - = - spalog Juawancidwy jeyide) $T-0259/
|sv2'z 49T - 000'T - - saunypuadxa o) 10-0059
| PN -
wc_amunucﬁ ‘syuaWade|day snoaue|[3dSIA | 005 T
sdunueld funds | osz
($0W/087S) 19.43U03 3PISUL | O9E'E
(8 x Sow/5g£5] 39813U03 3pISING | 080°E
LTEET $ZE'D ¥B6'1T S20'2 011’8 %T %LT 061'8 3dueudjujew sdelspuey T0-ETH9
WALV 6TAd IVNLIV OTAS WALV TTAd Qa103104d ZZA4 | 139An4a zzAd 4 SILON| 1S3ND3IH | 1390NE €Zad uondpdsaq 143 puny
ﬁ 193pNg £2A4 01199pNg ZZA4 23uBYD % _ ﬁ 132and 34vis B Junony
- : QIZHNIL £2A4
— 128pna £ZA4 03 paI23[0Id7TAS 3TuRYd %
I I |




Z20z/8/9 Yead leud

PunJ 241359Y |35 01 PaLI3jsUL 3G ABW YSED FunJom +

4102 wouf snjdins :

3je10d10) J0 %57 = 198.1e) ,

PuN4 3n13s53N Je19ads 01 PaJsajsues) 3q Aew ysed Suiniom + 31ei0d10) woly SIS ‘SINUPUdXa 3)e10010) J0 %57 = 1ad.e] ,

65056 246'689 ZTS'v6S yse) Sunjiom + ajesodio) Y1692 EVE'9YS L6TLLS yse) Supyiom + ajesadio)
ERTYELEREIN] aNI-HYIA « 139UVL $139Yv1 IINYIVE ANNA ERIYERERFT] aNF-UVIA + 1393VL S1IDWVL IINVIVE ANNS
a310IHOUd a3Ifoyd

‘anuanai xo} Auadoad| ‘ananas xoy Auadosd

Pa.113fap 03 anp 13103.8 000 SL6S Ad10Wix04ddp sf pua-403A 10 pupy UC yYso) :IION Pa.13Jap o1 anp 4330216 000565 A1210WX01ddD S| pU3-1034 1D PUBY U 4SO (310N
bzo'tszl | [o9szee | oso'szv'e | sevazee | vav'veTT SIV1OL (teg'zse) | [vsy'vet'T [oez'sev'z [ sov'oztz [ ste'zest I 51v104]
- - > - - SNOILYNOG ¥3d013A30 - - - SNOLLYNOQ ¥34013AIQ

- £18'72 " - Lv8'st HSVD ONINYOM - Ly8'see - Lb8'STT HSYD ONDIZOM
|{ooo‘oot) 888°Tv 000°00T - 888'TVE 3AYISIY WIS (00Z'€2T) 888'ZVE 00Z'€et 880'99% JAYISIY 1VIDAdS
- - - - - 1419 SOWI1 Va1Y - & - > - 1419 SON3IT Va1V

- - - - S153r0Hd Y.LV - - - 5133f0Yd TYLIdVD

- - - - - ANIWAOTIWINN - - AN3IWAOTdWINN

- - - - dW0D SHINFOM E - - dIAIOD SHINYOM

- - - - - ALuavI : - - AuTiavn

: - - & - uany - - - - - Lany

- - - - - LNIVW/SNIQUNS| (ose'ty) (LvL'y) 0SZ'ty €05°9E ANIVN/ONIaTING

- - - 7 - FTT0| - - - - - JUWI

- - - - - VIl - - - - vold
(¥Z9'TST) SZT'PoY 0S0'8LE'C STY'9zE'T 614’519 31vH0d30D (18€'88T) 961°029 98£'80EZ 50%021°Z ££8'808 31v¥OdY¥0d

N vz/fot/o vz/eTad vz/ezad £2/1/¢ aduejeg " €Z/0€/9 €2/ZeAd £2/zzMd 22/1/4 duejeq
s swoau 1ed pu3 no.&m.ﬁ paiadpng dujuujiag annd s 31001} fed pu3 pawadp paadp gujuuidag annd
-1e3, papafosd | pajewys3y -1e3A Pa1sfoid 3 | p [
%€ %S - 1d2 $202-€20ZA4 €202-TTOZAS
SNOILIIFOYd IINVIVE ANN4 SNOILD3rOYd IDNVIVE ONN

-43-



€Z0Z/8/9 yeiq |euld

71 aded

PUN4 2A1353Y (R193dS 03 pa.Isysue) aq Aew ysed Suppiom + ajeladio) woyy sniding saunyipuadxa a1e10d10] §O %57 = 133y,

Ppund 2A252Y [B129dS 0} paJIaJsuEs} aq Aew yse) Fuiniom + 31ei0d10) WoL SNIAINS 'SANYPUICNR 31810010 JO %S7 = 2adel,

(e60052) 20S'VLE 565'729 ysed Bupjsom + lesodio) {6t5'8¢) 661 'EES 8YEZT9 yse) dupjiom + aesodiod
IINFHILLIQ aNI-HVIA « 1394VL SLIDUVL IINVIVE NN IINIY33I0 GNI-YYIA PRELTTY $1394vL IINVIVE ANNd
a317310¥d a3LIIroNd
anuanai xo} Auadoid ‘anu3anal xoy Apadosd
PpaL1afap 03 anp 43)0246 000'SL6S A11DWIX0IADD S) pua-103A 10 puDY U YSOD 330N Passafap 03 anp 4330346 000°SL6S A1a10wix0sddo S| pua-10a4 10 PuDY UO YSTY) 310N
(262°657) | [osg'cty | 62e'865°C | z80'68€'2 [ £89'9¢9 i SIVI0L (€c1°952) | [t89'aee [ 16€%6v5z [ srz'esz’e [ 09s'zes | SV1O0L
- B : - - SNOILVNOQ ¥3d013A30 - - - - SNOILYNOG 43401330
L¥8'sTT - - £p8'sze HSYD ONINYOM - Ly8'ST - = (48522 HSYD ONINYOM
(000°00T) 8887 000'00T 888201 JAYISIY WIDIdS (000°00T1) 888°Zb1 000°00T- - 888'2HZ JAHISIY WIDAS
- - - - - 1419 SO va1Y - : - - - 1419 SOINT1 Va1V
- - - - LNIWAOTdNINN - - - - - LNIWAOTdWINN
- - - - - dINDD SHINIOM - - - - dINGD SHINYOM
- . - - - ALITISVIT - - - - - ALIgVY
- - - - any - - . - - any
- - - - - LNIVIN/ONIGING - - - - ANIVW/ONIGNNG
- - - - - NI - - - Suwi|
- - - - - L2 1) - - - - - vald
(£62'651) SS9'8YT 6LEBEY'T Z80'6EET 756'20€ 31VI0dHOD (g£1°951) 256°20€ T6E'6YH'T 8IZ'E6T'T SZL'P9Y 11V40dH0I
sasuadxg 9z/0Ef9 9z/STAd 9Z/sTAd §2/1/¢ duepg sasusdxg SZ/0E/9 ST/VTAS SZ/rTAd vz/1/L asuejeg
— 3duejeg pu3 padpng pajedpng Sujuuidag annd < sU00 asuejeq pu3 pa1adpng pajadpng Fuuugdog annd
-1e3), paafoid sasuadxy Juoau| patewns3 y -1e9) paaloid sasuadxy 3woau| pajewnsy
%2 %Z =142 920Z-520TA4 %E %E - 1dD STOT-HTOTAS
SNOILIAFOYd IINVIVE ANN SNOILD3f0Y4d IINVIVE NN

-44-



8a. REGULAR AGENDA
Approve payments for the period of May 19, 2022 - June 15, 2022

A partial bill list is included on the following page(s)

A complete bill list with SUGGESTED MOTION will be provided at the
Board Meeting

-45-



WARRENVILLE PUBLIC LIBRARY
Transaction Detail by Account

May 19 - June 15, 2022

Transactio
Date Num Name Amount n Type
06/15/2022 8832 Accounting Services, Inc. -528.00 Check
06/16/2022 8833 Ambius -286.00 Check
06/15/2022 8834 Baker & Taylor -3,785.68 Check
06/15/2022 8835 Baker & Taylor -137.21 Check
06/15/2022 8836 Baker & Taylor -305.31 Check
06/15/2022 8837 Baker & Taylor -16.59 Check
06/15/2022 8838 Baker & Taylor -1,859.94 Check
06/15/2022 8839 Barcodes, Inc. LLC -115.74 Check
06/15/2022 8840 Bielawa, Matthew -1,100.00 Check
06/156/2022 8841 Bloomscapes Landscaping, Inc. -385.00 Check
06/15/2022 8842 Chaidez, Christie -150.00 Check
06/15/2022 8843 Cintas Fire Protection -997.37 Check
06/15/2022 8844 Davis, Jackie -5.62 Check
06/15/2022 8845 Demco -36.81 Check
06/15/2022 8846 Direct Energy Business -2,952.30 Check
06/15/2022 8847 Hagg Press, Inc. -1,331.00 Check
06/15/2022 8848 Hertz Electric -175.00 Check
06/15/2022 8849 HR Source -150.00 Check
06/16/2022 8850 Konica Minolta Business Solutions -295.67 Check
06/15/2022 8851 LIMRICC Purchase of Health Insurance Prog -6,580.04 Check
06/15/2022 8852 Midwest Tape -1,330.40 Check
06/15/2022 8853 Midwest Tape -716.68 Check
06/15/2022 8854 Nedrow Decorating, Inc. -15,550.00 Check
06/15/2022 8855 Otis Elevator Company -455.00 Check
06/15/2022 8856 Petty Cash Fund -19.42 Check
06/15/2022 8857 Pezzini, Davide -1,200.00 Check
06/15/2022 8858 Sam's Club/Synchrony Bank -547.68 Check
06/15/2022 8859 Schlecht, Molly -1,840.00 Check
06/15/2022 8860 Service Master Commercial Cleaning -2,415.00 Check
06/15/2022 8861 Smith, Gail -652.00 Check
06/15/2022 8862 Symbology, Incorporated -516.22 Check
06/15/2022 8863 Technology Management Revolving Fund -475.00 Check
06/15/2022 8864 Warrenville Ace Hardware -16.18 Check
06/15/2022 8865 Whitmer, Sandy -4.85 Check
06/15/2022 8866 CDW Government, Inc. -1,543.92 Check
06/15/2022 8867 Quill Corporation -314.20 Check
06/15/2022 8868 Granite Telecommunications -154.60 Check
05/19/2022  Electronic.  Paylocity -283.67 Check
05/20/2022  Electronic Northern llinois Gas -333.92 Check
06/02/2022  Electronic Paylocity -117.82 Check

-46-



06/02/2022
06/02/2022
06/07/2022
06/09/2022
06/15/2022

Electronic
Electronic
Electronic

Electronic

AFLAC

Pitney Bowes, Inc.

Chase Ink

Konica Minolta Premier Finance
AT&T

-47-

-141.45 Check
-201.00 Check
-5,7567.47 Check
-370.00 Check
-375.00 Check



8b. REGULAR AGENDA

Approve transfer of funds

A transfer recommendation with SUGGESTED MOTION will be
provided at Board meeting if needed

Each month, a transfer of funds to the Fifth Third Operating account may be
necessary to cover anticipated expenditures.

-48-




10a. NEW BUSINESS
Review IMRF Early Retirement Incentive Cost Proposal (ACTION)

Last month, Director Whitmer suggested the Board request a cost proposal for IMRF's
early retirement incentive. The Board asked our authorized IMRF agent, Jackie Davis, to
reach out to IMRF for the cost proposal.

IMRF provided a cost proposal for this incentive. Director Whitmer does not recommend
the Board offer this incentive. This was a good opportunity to learn about the incentive,
however the cost far exceeds any savings the library would realize.

The full cost proposal is available from Jackie upon request. Here is a brief summary:

» Three employees are eligible for the incentive if offered from January 1 -
December 31, 2023.
» The annual payroll for the three employees is $197,495.
o The cost proposal assumes annual increases of 3%.
+ If all three employees opted into the incentive, the additional liability created
would be $469,837.
» The library could pay this liability in a lump sum or amortize it over a period of
years, for example:
o Syears - total cost is $558,761 with annual payments ranging from
$106,000 to $117,000
« 10 years - total cost is $662,624 with annual payments ranging from
$59.145 to $73,864.

Unless the Board disagrees with this assessment, no action is needed on this item.

-49-



10b. NEW BUSINESS

Accept proposal from Gallagher Insurance and authorize Library
Director to proceed with Library Insurance Risk Agency membership

(ACTION)

Suggestion Action: Accept proposal from Gallagher Insurance and authorize Library
Director to proceed with Library Insurance Risk Agency membership and work with
Gallagher broker for new policies effective July 1, 2022, including a bond for the Board

Treasurer (ACTION)

Last month, the Board heard a presentation by Trevor Smith and Michael McHugh
representing Gallagher Insurance and the Library Insurance Risk Agency.

Director Whitmer recommends the Board authorize the Library to move forward with
LIRA membership and secure insurance through Gallagher with coverage beginning

July 1, 2022.

Policies through Gallagher are on a calendar year cycle. Our current policies are on a
fiscal year cycle. Therefore, the Library will pay for 18 months of coverage in FY23. (Pro-
rated premiums for July-December 2022 and full premiums for January-December 2023)

Below is a summary of Gallagher's proposal which includes Package Insurance
(Property, General Liability, Board Legal Liability, Automobile Liability and Physical
Damage, Inland Marine {artwork), EDP, Crime), Workers' Compensation, Excess Liability,
Boiler & Machinery, Risk Management Services, Cyber/Identity Theft, and Workers'

Compensation.

2021-22 premiums are pro-rated to cover the period from July through December 2022.

July1, 2021-July 1, 2022
Expiring Premiums
(library paid in FY22)

January 1-December 31, 2022
Renewal (LIRA)
(This number is only fora 12
month comparison to our
expiring premiums)

July 1-December 31, 2022
pro-rated premiums
(library will pay this plus the
full premium for 2023 in
FY23. 2023 premiums TBD)

$25,096

$21,700

$12,610

Our board treasurer is currently covered by a crime policy. If this proposal is approved,
the freasurer will need to be bonded and there will be an additional cost for the bond.
Director Whitmer does not expect the bond to exceed the difference between our

expiring premiums and the renewal amount.

If approved, Director Whitmer will work with Lundstrom Insurance to not renew existing
policies. Our Lundstrom Insurance representative did not provide a renewal quote for
the library’s policies other than to say our policies “auto renew.” The renewal of our
cyber liability policy was declined by the carrier. Lundstrom offered alternatives for this
coverage, but we have not pursued them at this time.

If approved, Director Whitmer will work with Trustee Lezon to complete and submit the

treasurer bond application.

-50-




10c. NEW BUSINESS

Approve revised Employee Handbook: Annual Leave Policy

(ACTION)

Suggestion Action: Approve revised Employee Handbook Annual Leave Policy with an

effective date of July 11, 2022 (ACTION)

As part of the budget discussion in May, Director Whitmer recommended several
changes to the current annual leave policy. Annual leave is to be used for vacation
and personal days. It can be used for sick days if the employee’s sick leave balance

falls to zero.

Employees who would “lose” fime off under the revised policy will be granted an

exception.

The significant differences between the revised policy and current policy are:

Revised policy

Current Policy

All full-time and part-time employees will
earn up to a maximum of 6 weeks annual
leave to be used for vacation or personal
business days.

Management Team earns up to 6 weeks.
Other employees earn up to 5 weeks.

Full-fime Management Team employees
begin with 4 weeks.

Management Team employees begin
with 5 weeks.

Full-time and part-time employees begin
with 3 weeks

{no change)

One additional week earned after every
3 years of employment until the
maximum is reached

One additional week earned after every
5 years of employment until the
maximum is reached

Pro-rated time off for employees is
calculated based on the employee's
authorized weekly hours and awarded as
a flat amount each pay period.

Time-off for employees is based the
number of hours worked in a pay period
and the amount awarded varies each
pay period.

A section about how to request annual leave has been added and other information

has been updated for clarity.

The revised policy is included on the following pages. Current policy is available upon

request.

-51-




PROPOSED POLICY (to be effective July 11, 2022 — first full payroll in FY23)

ANNUAL LEAVE 5.1

page 1

Annual leave is paid leave to be used for vacation and personal business days. It is earned by
full-time and part-time employees from the first date of employment. Temporary employees are
not eligible for annual leave.

FULL-TIME and PART-TIME EMPLOYEES

Full-time and part-time employees may accrue up to the maximum amount indicated in the table
below. Part-time maximums and hours earned are pro-rated based on the employee’s
authorized weekly hours.

earned per pay
period

earned per pay
period

earned per pay
period

| Full-Time Part-time Part-time Part-time
37.5 hours 30 hours 25 hours 20 hours ]
Years 1 through 3 | 112.5 hours max | 90 hours max 75 hours max 60 hours max
3 weeks 4.33 hours 3.47 hours 2.89 hours 2.31 hours

earned per pay
period

Years 4 through 6
4 weeks

150 hours max

5.77 hours
earned per pay
period

120 hours max

4.62 hours
earned per pay
period

100 hours max

3.85 hours
earned per pay
period

80 hours max

3.08 hours
earned per pay
period

Years 7 through 9
5 weeks

187.5 hours max

7.22 hours
| earned per pay
period

150 hours max

5.77 hours
earned per pay
period

125 hours max

4.81 hours
earned per pay
period

100 hours max

3.85 hours
earned per pay
period

' Years 10+
6 weeks

225 hours max

8.66 hours
earned per pay
period

180 hours max

6.93 hours
earned per pay
period

150 hours max

5.77 hours
earned per pay
period

120 hours max |

4.62 hours
earned per pay
period

Note about calculations: The amount earned per pay period is calculated by dividing the
maximum amount by 26, the number of bi-weekly pay periods in a year.

FULL-TIME MANAGEMENT TEAM EMPLOYEES

Full-time Management Team employees may accrue up to the maximum amount indicated in
the table below. The amount earned per pay period is calculated by dividing the maximum
amount by 26, the number of bi-weekly pay periods in a year.

Years 1 through 3
4 weeks

150 hours max

5.77 hours earned per pay period

Years 4 through 6
5 weeks

187.5 hours max

7.22 hours earned per pay period

Years 7+
6 weeks

17225 hours max

8.66 hours earned per pay period

-52-



PROPOSED POLICY (to be effective July 11, 2022 — first full payroll in FY23)
ANNUAL LEAVE 5.1 page 2

MAKING AN ANNUAL LEAVE REQUEST
Employees are required to submit their annual leave request to their manager for approval as
far in advance as possible, but no more than 12 months prior to the start of the requested leave.

Whenever possible, annual leave requests should be submitted by the first day of the month
preceding the month in which the annual leave will begin. (For example, when requesting
annual leave that begins in the month of July, the employee should submit the request no later
than June 1.)

All requests will be reviewed by the employee’s manager who will take into consideration the
operational needs of the Library in determining whether or not to approve the request.

Requests will be approved on a first-come, first-served basis. If multiple requests for the same
date are received on the same day, then they will be considered in order of the employees’
length of service.

Annual leave may be requested in increments of 15 minutes.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING ANNUAL LEAVE
Annual leave pay will be at the employee’s regular hourly rate of pay in effect at the time the
leave is taken.

Annual leave may not be used to exceed an employee’s authorized weekly hours.

Employees may not accrue annual leave in excess of their maximum. If an employee reaches
their maximum, no additional leave will be awarded until they use annual leave and their
accrued amount falls below their maximum.

An employee’s annual leave balance may not fall below zero.

Employees are responsible for managing their annual leave balance. Employees should review
their annual leave balance regularly so they are aware if they are approaching the maximum
accrual or if a request will exceed their available annual leave.

When the employment relationship ends, the employee’s accrued, unused annual leave is paid
out at the employee’s current rate of pay.

Annual leave will not accrue during any unpaid absences.

Annual leave may be used to make up for time lost if holiday pay causes an employee’s hours
to fall below their authorized weekly hours. (The employee must request annual leave and get
approval from their manager.)

Annual leave must be used for Family Medical Leave after an employee has exhausted their
available sick [eave.

An employee will be moved up into the next earning tier in the pay period in which their
employment anniversary occurs.

All benefits for which an employee is eligible (for example: seniority, leave accrual, IMRF,
insurance) continue while an employee is on paid leave).

For review and approval by Board of Trustees June 15, 2022

-53-



10d. NEW BUSINESS
Approve revised Employee Handbook: Sick Leave Policy (ACTION)

Suggestion Action: Approve revised Employee Handbook Sick Leave Policy with an
effective date of July 11, 2022 (ACTION)

As part of the budget discussion in May, Director Whitmer recommended part-time
employees be eligible for sick leave. The sick leave policy has been revised to provide
pro-rated sick leave for part-time employees.

Like annual leave, pro-rated sick leave is calculated based on the employee's
authorized weekly hours and awarded as a flat amount each pay period.

A section about how to request sick leave has been added and other information has
been updated for clarity.

The revised policy is included on the following pages. Current policy is available upon
request.

-54-



PROPOSED POLICY (to be effective July 11, 2022 - first full payroll in FY23)
SICK LEAVE 5.2 page 1

Sick leave is paid leave to be used for absences due to an employee’s iliness, injury or medical
appointment. Sick leave may also be used for absences due to an illness, injury or medical
appointment for the employee’s child (biological, adopted, foster, stepchild or child of a person
standing in loco parentis), spouse, domestic partner, sibling, parent, mother-in-law, father-in-
law, grandchild, grandparent or stepparent.

Sick leave is earned by full-time and part-time employees from the first date of employment.
Temporary employees are not eligible for annual leave.

SICK LEAVE ACCRUALS

Full-time and part-time employees may accrue up to the maximum amount indicated in the table
below. Part-time maximums, single day equivalents and hours earned are pro-rated based on
the employee’s authorized weekly hours.

Full-Time Part-time Part-time Part-time
37.5 hours 30 hours 25 hours 20 hours
(7.5 hours = 1 day) (6 hours = 1 day) (5 hours = 1 day) (4 hours = 1 day)

12 days per year; 1,800 hours max | 1,440 hours max | 1,200 hours max | 960 hours max

240 day maximum | g pore earned | 72 hours eaned | 60 hours earned | 48 hours earned

per year per year per year per year
3.47 hours 2.77 hours 2.31 hours 1.85 hours
earned per pay | earned per pay | earned per pay | earned per pay
period period | period period

Note about calculations: Single day equivalents are calculated by dividing the authorized weekly
hours by 5. Single day equivalents are used to calculate the maximum and annual hours
earned. (Single day equivalents should not typically be used when calculating payments for time
off.) The amount earned per pay period is calculated by dividing the hours earned per year by
26, the number of bi-weekly pay periods in a year.

MAKING A SICK LEAVE REQUEST

For medical appointments, employees should submit their sick leave request to their manager
as far in advance as possible, preferably when the appointment is scheduled. If possible,
employees should attempt to schedule medical appointments outside of their regularly
scheduled hours.

Other requests should be submitted as the need for sick leave occurs. Please refer to the
“Attendance and Punctuality” guidelines in the Employee Handbook for notification procedures.

Sick leave may be requested in increments of 15 minutes.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REGARDING SICK LEAVE
Sick leave pay will be at the employee’s regular hourly rate of pay in effect at the time the leave
is taken.

Sick leave may not be used to exceed an employee’s authorized weekly hours.

Employees may not accrue sick leave in excess of their maximum. If an employee reaches their
maximum, no additional leave will be awarded until they use sick leave and their accrued
amount falls below their maximum.

-55-



PROPOSED POLICY (to be effective July 11, 2022 - first full payroll in FY23)
SICK LEAVE 5.2 page 2

An employee’s sick leave balance may not fall below zero. If an employee is sick and has
exhausted all sick leave, they must use annual leave. If all annual leave is exhausted, the
employee may be eligible for an unpaid Family Medical Leave of Absence.

Employees are responsible for managing their sick leave balance. Employees should review
their sick leave balance regularly so they are aware if they are approaching the maximum
accrual or if a request will exceed their available sick leave.

When the employment relationship ends, the employee’s accrued, unused sick leave is not paid
out to the employee. Some IMRF employees may be able to receive service credit for unused
sick leave when they retire from the library.

Sick leave will not accrue during any unpaid absences.
Employees are required to use sick leave for approved Family Medical Leaves of Absence.

The library may require a doctor’s statement when returning from sick leave of three or more
consecutive days.

The library may require a fitness for duty statement which indicates whether an employee may
return to work with or without restrictions following an illness or injury.

Employees who are absent because of a work-related injury are subject to the provisions of
workers compensation.

Using sick leave under false pretenses is grounds for disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

All benefits for which an employee is eligible (for example: seniority, leave accrual, IMRF,
insurance) continue while an employee is on paid leave).

For review and approval by Board of Trustees June 15, 2022

-56-



10e. NEW BUSINESS
Rescind Employee Handbook: Paid Time Off Policy (ACTION)

Suggestion Action: Rescind Employee Handbook Paid Time Off Policy effective
Employee Handbook Sick Leave Policy with an effective date of July 11, 2022 (ACTION)

The current Paid Time Off policy provides part-time employees with a time off benefit
that is to be used for vacation, personal days and sick days.

If the Board approves the revised annual leave and sick leave policies, the PTO policy is
no longer needed because part-time employees will have access to time off under
both of the revised policies.

Accrued PTO will be converted to annual leave.

-57-



10f. NEW BUSINESS
Approve revised Employee Handbook: Paid Holidays and
Floating Holidays Policy (ACTION)

Suggestion Action: Approve revised Employee Handbook Paid Holidays and Floafing
Holidays Policy with an effective date of July 11, 2022 for paid holidays and January 1,
2023 for Floating Holidays (ACTION)

Language regarding paid holidays is clarified. The revisions to this portion of the policy
will be effective July 11, 2022.

A floating holiday benefit has been added.

» Employees will be awarded up to 3 floating holidays each calendar year.

» Floating holidays are intended for religious, federal and state holidays that are
not recognized by the library. (The library is open on the day of the holiday.)

» Floating holidays may also be used on an employee's birthday.

» Floating holidays may not be carried over and are not paid out at separation of
employment.

The revised policy is included on the following pages. Current policy is available upon
request.

-58-



PROPOSED POLICY (floating holidays to be effective January 1, 2023)
PAID HOLIDAYS AND FLOATING HOLIDAYS 5.4 page 1

Full-time and part-time employees are eligible for paid holidays and floating holidays. Temporary
employees are not eligible for paid holidays.

PAID HOLIDAYS (effective June 16, 2022)
Full-time and part-time employees will be paid for the following holidays:

New Year's Day

Memorial Day

Independence Day

Labor Day

Thanksgiving Day

Day after Thanksgiving

Christmas Eve Day

Christmas Day

New Year's Eve Day

Employees will receive holiday pay as follows:
Full-time (37.5 hours) .... 7.5 hours per holiday
Part-time (30 hours) ...... 6 hours per holiday
Part-time (25 hours) ...... 5 hours per holiday
Part-time (20 hours) ...... 4 hours per holiday

For full-time employees, if a holiday falls on a day when an employee is not regularly scheduled
to work, the employee will be entitled to take the holiday on another day at the mutual
convenience of the employee and the library. In this case, time off for the holiday must be
approved in advance by the manager. This day should be taken within two weeks of the holiday
(before or after) and must be approved by the employee’s manager.

For part-time employees, if a holiday falls on a day when an employee is not regularly
scheduled to work, then the employee earns holiday pay, but is not entitled to take the holiday
off on another day. The library understands this may cause an employee to exceed their
regularly scheduled hours. Because holiday hours are not working hours, the employee will not
be entitled to overtime for holiday hours if they cause the employee to exceed 40 hours in a
workweek.

For part-time employees, if a holiday causes an employee to fall below their authorized weekly
hours, the employee may request to use annual leave to make up for the difference in hours.
This typically occurs with part-time employees when the holiday falls on a day the employee is
regularly scheduled to work, but the holiday hours are less than the employee’s regularly
scheduled hours. (Example: A 30-hour employee typically works a 7.5-hour day, but receives 6
hours of holiday pay. The employee could request 1.5 hours of annual leave to make up the
difference for the day.)

The Library Board reviews the library’s holiday schedule annually and has the discretion to
declare additional holidays, either paid or unpaid. Typically, the library is also closed the Sunday
before both Memorial Day and Labor Day, but these are not paid holidays. The Board may also
opt to close for an additional day when a paid holiday falls on a Saturday or Sunday.

During a Family Medical Leave of Absence, an employee is entitled to receive holiday pay.

-59.



PROPOSED POLICY (floating holidays to be effective January 1, 2023)
PAID HOLIDAYS AND FLOATING HOLIDAYS 5.4 page 2

FLOATING HOLIDAYS (effective January 1, 2023)

The library recognizes that the library may not recognize holidays that are important to our
employees. Full-time and part-time employees have the option to take up to three floating
holidays each calendar year. These holidays are to be paid at the same rate as a paid holiday.

A floating holiday may be used on any of the following days when the library is open and the
employee would be regularly scheduled to work:

Religious holiday

Federal holiday (www.opm.gov/policy-data-oversight/pay-leave/federal-holidays/)

State holiday (www2.illinois.gov/cms/personnel/employeeresources/Pages/StateHoIidays.aspx)
Employee birthday

Floating holidays may not be carried over and will not be paid out if they are unused at the end
of the year.

Floating Holiday Request Process: Requests for paid holidays for the next calendar year will be
accepted by managers in the first two weeks of October. All requests are due by October 15.
Managers will consider and approve requests, notifying employees by November 1 whether
requests have been approved or denied. First consideration will be given to religious holidays.
Ali other requests will be approved in order of employee length of service. Each manager will
also need to consider the operational needs of the library when approving requests.

New employees may submit floating holiday request during their first month of employment.
If any employee needs additional time off for a holiday on which the library is open, the

employee is encouraged to work with their manager to make alternate arrangements (annual
leave, adjusted schedule or traded shift).

Sample request form:

FLOATING HOLIDAY REQUEST FORM NAME

Tumn in to your manager between October 1 and October 15

Please list up to 5 floating holidays, in priority order that you wish to request for next calendar
year. You may be approved for up to 3 paid floating holidays.

Priority | Date Holiday name
1

LS LI I~ B OV B N

For review and approval by Board of Trustees June 15, 2022
(Paid holidays effective immediately, Floating holidays effective January 1, 2023
with requests due in October 2022)

-60-




10g. NEW BUSINESS
Request to remove iPads from Youth Services Area (discussion only)

Last month, Director Whitmer shared email correspondence from Lindsey Brill regarding
the iPads located in the Youth Services Area. Ms. Brill emailed again to inquire if the
Board had discussed this topic. Director Whitmer has asked Public Services Manager
Paul Dobersztyn to review this matter with his staff. The correspondence from Ms. Brill
and Director Whitmer's responses are included below.

Director Whitmer is interested in hearing the Board's thoughts on this matter before a
decision is made by staff. Paul will attend the meeting to share what staff have
considered in making a decision about the availability of iPads for children and how
they are made available to visitors.

Sent: Thursday, May 5, 2022 1:59 PM
To: Trustees <trustees@warrenville.com>

Your Lindsey Brill
name:
Your
email lindsey.a brill@gmail.com
address:
Dear Board,

I am a Warrenville resident and mother to twin two year olds. We frequent the
library often and enjoy reading books and playing with the toys in the children's
section. I am writing to request that the IPAD's be removed from the children's
area. As a mom and as a psychologist, I know the negative effects that
technology can have on a growing brain. I do not allow my children to use these

Your devices and am very disappointed that they are accessible for children in the

message:  library, a place where they should be focused on reading and literature. I am
becoming frustrated that I spend so much time at the library keeping my kids
away from them rather than enjoying ourselves. I do not think it is necessary for
a library to encourage children to use these devices.

Thank you for your attention to this matter,

Lindsey Brill

-61-



From: Trustees <trustees@warrenville.com>
Sent: Friday, May 6, 2022 10:11 AM

To: Lindsey Brill

Cc: Paul Dobersztyn

Thank you for taking the time to share your thoughts. | will share this with the Board at its next
meeting and have copied our Public Service Manager, Paul Dobersztyn, on this email so his
team can discuss your concerns.

Sandy Whitmer, Library Director on behalf of
Warrenville Public Library District Board of Trustees

From: Lindsey Brill

Sent: Monday, June 6, 2022 10:21 AM

To: Trustees <trustees@warrenville.com>

Cc: Paul Dobersztyn <paul@warrenville.com>

Good Morning,

I would like a follow up regarding the discussion about it the iPads in the children’s area. Was this
discussed at the last meeting? If it was decided to keep them | would like to know the
reasons/benefits of having them. A suggestion would be to make them available for checkout only.

Thank you,
Lindsey

From: Trustees <trustees@warrenville.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 9, 2022 9:03 AM

To: Lindsey Brill <lindsey.a.brill@gmail.com>
Cc: Paul Dobersztyn <paul@warrenville.com>

Your email was shared with the Board of Trustees at the May 18, 2022 Regular Board of
Trustees Meeting. The Board did not take up discussion of your correspondence. It is my
understanding that Paul Dobersztyn and his team have reviewed your May 5 email and he
intends to respond to you soon.

I will share this email with the Board of Trustees at their next meeting on June 15, 2022 and |
am adding an agenda item to offer the trustees an opportunity to discuss if they wish.

Sandy Whitmer, Library Director on behalf of
Warrenville Public Library District Board of Trustees

-62-



11. DIRECTOR'S REPORT
May 2022 Sandy Whitmer

Reminder: Open Meetings Act Training Update
Open Meetings Act training certificates are due to administration as soon as possible for
the following trustees:
Barbara DuRocher - OMA Public Board Member (only)
Rick Warren & Cindy Ruzicka - OMA Public Board Member & OMA Designee
If you need assistance, please email pactechnicalsupport@ilag.gov.

COVID-19 Mitigation Protocols

No changes to our protocols. DuPage County has moved from “medium” to “high" on
the CDC's community level scale. We continue to recommend, but not require masks.
Staff are strongly encouraged to wear masks and continue social distancing.

Over the past month, we had one employee who tested positive for COVID-19. The
employee isolated at home for the recommended period. None of our library
employees were identified as close contacts for this individual. We continue to follow
CDC guidelines for employees who test positive or are identified as a close contact.

If the Board approves the proposed Sick Leave policies at the June 15 Board Meeting,
then COVID-19 Paid Leave will be discontinued when the Sick Leave police becomes
effective (July 11). Employees’ available leave will be carried from May 30 to July 11.
(We will not extend an additional 2 weeks of leave for this interim period.)

In June, the Management Team will be discussing capacity limits and other “pivots” to
be made in September.

Other Activities

The library's annual performance evaluation process will wrap up on June 10. In
addition to my 5 regular direct reports, | wrote evaluations for 7 of the Member Services
staff and completed a 90-day evaluation for 1 emplayee. | also reviewed and
commented on the evaluations prepared by the other managers for their employees.
Individual evaluation conferences are schedule to take place the week of June 6.

The Member Services team have been managing most aspects of day-to-day
operations and I'm grateful to them for keeping things on track. | am reviewing files and
documentation in preparation for recruiting a new manager. Over the last month, I've
had the opportunity to work at the desk several times, usually when an employee is off
for a vacation and a sub cannot be found.

Continuing Ed/Professional Development
» Effective Ways to Onboard New Employees (CARLI - Consortium of Academic
Research Libraries in lllinois)
LIMRICC Spring Member Meeting
Employment Law Updates You May Have Missed (HR Source)
SWAN Quarterly Meeting

FOIA Requests
No responses sent in May.

-63-



0 0 0 0 06 |73 Sl 0 0 0 0 - - «POIBN g PENSS| SPJBD Juapisay maN
VA3 g 6 3 6 6 6 4 6 Zl el 2] 1l penss| spJeg auljup
1z 99 zL Zy Z5 se 1€ 8t v 6E €5 ) 09 uoSIad U] panss| SpIeD Juapisay
599'6 €826 6196 609'6 ori's 0€8'6 £69'6 Z289'6 LLL'6 192'6 91L's 26.'6 808'6 SAIIOY spleD jJuapisay jejol
SQIVYI Avean
16 0g 0 00€ 0 vy bh 0 0 1z vl €8l 8€0') 30UBPUSRY 4OREANO YINOA
158 3 0 L 0 € I 0 0 l I )4 9 SjuBAg yoeaanO YINoA
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0se - Sduepuayy yoeannQ uas )
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3 - SjuaA3 yoeaqnQ uaa |
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 |0 0 0 8 06 9 aduepuany yoeaangQ jinpy
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [} 0 l 4 } SIUBAZ Yoeedng }inpy
| | HOVIYLNO
0 0 0 0 Z I [4 € 0 Z S I } 9duepuayy ueleiqi-y-yaog
0 0 Q 0 (4} 4} i 143 0 ¥l ¥l |41 j4" SuoIssag ueue.lqi}-y-joog
20k 0.€ 805 ave (5744 892 (\744 g8ie geg 162 99¢ 29¢ S9l 80UBpURYY Weibold YINoA
L 9l Ll 8 Sl (174 61 ¥l ¥4 6l F24 SC Pl sweibold YINoA jo Jequinn
[4% [44 Sl Z 89 [44 £S5 44 18 09 [45 ] ol 80UBPUIYY Welbold use]
(]} 3 S 14 /4 |4 S € A L 8 48 6 swielbold usa] Jo rpquinN
4] 62L 0L 1S 8rl g1 16 081 0sZ Sy 62¢ 008’1 682 aouepusyy weiboid Jnpy
L 9l VA 9 Ll 9l 9l 13 61 i 9l %4 |6l - sutelbold JInpy Jo Jequnp
[ - SWYN90ud
eyl SEF'L 29571 1991 SI8'FL 606'74 61671 6b0'SL ZLSH 0LZ'Sk £8'S1 0zs'sh 20L's) SH00GOIPNE SALIPISAD
268 vY vosey IS5°EY £69°'cy vO6'EY 650y Sy sy £80'vY ovzhy 0550 9LL'vy 6LZ'SY ~$)00( 9ALPJAAD
cel'L8 €6£'28 zeL'18 258'08 182'08 £V0'08 6€2'08 e'Le 812'08 608'08 612'08 ovl'08 9508 sjeuajew [ea1siyd
69€°'0rL 08 YL 962'6E1 90Z'6€1 905'6EL LL0'6EL LER'GEL 815'0v1 £LV'6E1 GoZ'0v} ZsL'ovt [Asdd] LEV'LYL 9ZIS uonaRjlo leyo)
€61 €2} |8¢ 850} G26°'L 950°tL 651 €92 126 0.2l ave 669 £95°L umeIPYHAA SleUsje [eoishyd
[543 z€9 184 985 09 602 Z99 ve9 162 v.i9 599 682 z€9 ~ Pappy s[eusjep [edlsilg
~ NOWD3T109)
61 1z Ll €l 124 Sl Sl [44 6) 0l 6 9l | 0L S8LRIQIT NYMS-UON 0} Juss
+95'L _ |eg9’L 862°}) 808°'L viL'l r16'L 816') 088'}L £€0Z'2 6v6°'L 650'C 890 £66°L SaleIqiT NYAMS 0} Jues
vl e 9l £l 8 L 9l il €l vl 8l 6 ¥l S8UE.IQIT NYMS-UON WY paAIRoay
082°L LEG'L 812'L orv'L 615°L £65°L 85€‘L 1091 60L°C 26S'L 66%'L 599'}L 962°L SOUEIQIT NYMS WOoJ) pasieday
SNVYOT AUVHEITNILNI
SE0‘L 020°t G80'L 2L0'L 9¢£6 66 620°L 966 220°1L 1901 880°L Z0L°L 9l _..—. - ejdooH
25 19 LEL 84 6% 18 8 9s (443 0§ | Y 6L L enbiq gy ex (sauzebew) OAUPIOAQ |
vee'L 162°L GZY'L 69¢°L 222’1l 6EY'L | 60€'L 18¢'L 8¢St Ley't Sitr'L 6l¥'L 6LY'L Aqqry/eAupsenp
9Ze'T 8122 Ip9'T 41 4 2022 pI8'z 'z 60p'z 2692 r4X 4 2092 099'2 609'C ‘NOLLYINJHIO 378vavOINMOa
Sie'L 185’1 082'tL £6¥'L 128') 8¥9'L 06€‘L S19°L [0):4 %4 GE9'L LSl 0.2l 29¢g'L Q1dM 1e no payosyD sway Leiqr] B4l0
$05'c oLe'e 12e'y 1099t 86L'y t41% 4 '6Y8'E 995°¢c 106'S 089'c €5E'Y 68¢'y Lo¥'y swayj| gldM Jo siemauai-oiny
852'9 2026 8v8's L22°L 1052 £€50'2 L6Y'L crr'e 8L, ZL6'9 116’8 S58°L 120°2 QTdM 1€ 10 paydayd swel GdM
LL0°LL rol'vL 626'vL 0£6‘el 0.2°¢) £20Ch 9€2'2) €Z9'LL g8e'tl .hNN.N—. Sov'pl 8v6°clL 0622} (swiey JearsAyd) NOLLYTNDNID WLOL

- )’ v v

i

-64-



SJUBPISal A1dM
MaU yoeal o} sAem J3YJ0 auluuglap 0} mc_uwvtmc‘ YIM YIOM [[im STIAIDS JaqLuUBiN .Dum>>._0‘— UEOO A 120C ._OQEQ>OZJ_ODEO~QOWV UO_._OQ {ey) Ljuow ¢ e Jsje _ummzmn uaaq sey uOO.qe& Juapisay moN Byl ..
"SJUN023 JOYSIA INO 10} SBIUBLUS 1B SI6JUN03 3|doad uo Ajes M am *piemio; BUIOD "SUNOS [enuew 09 ¢ gels) Buisn Jabuo| ou ‘1z0z ABW-PIW U paAOWal puels 16j98.9),
vig 743 62¢ vEE g¢g 9¢g Vve ove 0SE gge o€ 69€ T3 siomojjo- weibejsuj
Sve') 0sz't voz'L v9Z'L 992°} €2} 5.2 5.2l 582l 162°1 JOE'L  |SIET gze'l SIOMO}j02 %00Ga0E
%S %9¢ %62 %EE %92 %82 %62 %Ge %lE %SY %by %Ly %ey sjey usdQ smane
LEE'S VEE'S ¥BE'S 9zr's Si¥'G 0sv's av's 06¥°'S 98t's Z15° 166G (1SS €25 $16q|OSQNS SMAN®
B ONLLINYVI
186'8 Z1l's 8I€'6 6EE'6 €201 |zer's ILE's 8082 |I16V'6 918'g zs8's Se6'8 6126 SUSIA BUSTOM
8v6 vIEL 8rs'L 166°L 6€5° 65G') See'L Ao 829' 2061 £26'L | 660C SUOISSAS UIM
£ee 207 2y €0y 5Ly 88e Ly Ly 60 6Ly z€8 118 oy suoissag Jajndwiod
[ - _ — ADOTONHDZL ® SHILNAWOD
ve v 62 1S 5z 9z 8z 6L T3 3 62 8l 0z SdNXOId 30ISAAUND
zZes't 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 - - +SLISIA 09 3 V9
L L z 0 0 } 1 z I {o119nd) S3SN WOOY ONLLIIW
0 0 88 86 9Ll 29l 80} 801 vEL 89} 8L) ISt |8l $3SN WOOY AGNLS
1262 ¥99'0 8009 05L's 880 9.1 669°C  |iblV 229y vy 2909 10' 160° ANNOS HOLISIA

(X411

Aep

1202
unp

(X414
0

%4114
AON

Lcoe
29Q

ceoe
uep

[441]4
o4

[AAI 1A
Jep

(4414
ady

(4414
Aep

JOHSdVNS TVIILSILYLS

-65-



12. ASSISTANT TO THE DIRECTOR'S REPORT
May 2022 Jackie Davis

Administration

Sent financials to Accounting Services for processing

Assembled the May board packet

Processed checks for signature and mailing

Composed minutes of the May 18 Committee of the Whole Board Meeting
Composed minutes of the May 18 Regular Board Meeting

Made two bank deposits for daily receipts and copy machines

Transferred funds from ProPay to Fifth Third

Coordinated, ordered and picked up dinner order for Committee of the Whole

Human Resources

Processed two payrolls

Sent IMRF and monthly financial information to Accounting Services
Processed one staff resignation

Wrote and submitted Ly's annual evaluation to Sandy for review.

Meetings
e Management Team Meetings - May 3 and 17
¢ Employee Handbook Committee - May 19
e Board Meeting and COW - May 18
* LIMRICC Hedalth Insurance meeting (zoom) - May 17

Maintenance

Ly continues to maintain the building on a daily basis Monday-Friday.
Washed the window sills on the building and removed cobwebs.

Ly arranges the meeting room for programs every week.

Cintas completed their annual fire alarm inspection — May 19

Window washing was completed in May

Jackie purchased outdoor flowers and Ly planted them the week of May 9.
Staining of the building began on May 24. Ly closed the parking lot and
entrances as necessary.

* Ly ordered parts to fix the circuit breaker in the oldest AC condenser. He will
contact the electrician to install the parts in June. (This should keep the unit from
blowing a circuit and stopping during days with extreme temps.)

-66-



12,

PUBLIC SERVICES REPORT
May 2022 Paul Dobersztyn

Highlights

The library hosted 42 totals events in May with 600 participants. We had 143 views
of our recorded events.

Public Services hosted 2 passive programs: League of Women of Women Voter's
voting machine demonstration and Free Comic Book Day hosting 125 total
participants.

Diana Abraham visited several Warrenville businesses in search of support for the
Summer Reaching Challenge. Diana was able to receive donations from
Markito's Bar & Grill, Starbucks, British Swim School, S.T.R.E.A.M. tutoring and
others.

Youth Services met to discuss Fall programming on 5/3.

Adult Services met to discuss Fall programming on 5/10.

Personnel

No changes

Professional Development

3 sessions of CE were completed by the Public Services Department in May.

2 total hours of CE were completed.

Tom Hill was tasked with investigating the possible addition of Career Online High
School from Smart Horizons and the feasibility of adding this service to our library.
This program could provide Warrenville residents with a possibility of finishing their
High School diploma. Below is his report:

o Inmany cases students are able to transfer previous high school credits.
Also accept GED scores and HISAT. Over 80% of graduates continue their
education after earning their diploma through COHS.

o COHS is an alternative to getting the GED. Different from GED in that there
is no standardized test. Competency-based, one course at a time.

o Goalis to provide something different than what students have
experienced before, and to help students overcome “educationdl
tfrauma.”

= Goals:

e -Make classes relevant

e -Remove fear of failure

e - Provide support

* "Upside-down" curriculum: students choose a career
certificate (10 options available) and complete these career
courses first. Students spend 120 hours/4 credits completing
these real-world career courses.

o No grades are given but students must pass classes with a 70% or higher.
One course, one lesson at a time. There are final exams, but no
standardized tests. Option to have content read aloud. Or student can
read it on their own. Classes exist 100% online within the student portal. No
books. User-friendly, flexible, designed to be “doable” for busy adults.
Students can move through the courses as quickly as they want, although
it is recommended to spend 8-10 hours on school per week. Students have
up to 18 months max to complete the core academic courses.

-67-



o FEach student is assigned an Academic Coach who fracks their progress
and is there to advise students. “*Academic Support Instructors” also
available for those struggling.

o RAILS handles the annual platform fee. Training and marketing materials
provided.

o Library would provide “scholarships” to students. The cost is $1,095 per
stfudent. These can be purchased one at a time on an as-needed basis,
although RAILS recommended purchasing two or three to start.
Scholarships are purchased through RAILS, and then the library (us) is
billed.

o Education responsibilities go to Academic Coaches. Library staff is really
only responsible for marketing, selecting candidates from those who
apply, and helping them enroll.

o Before committing, students can “test drive” and spend two weeks and
complete 2 credit of elective courses and see if it feels like a good fit. This
also gives the library the opportunity to see if the student is serious and
committed. If both the library and the student want to move forward, the
18 months begins. Once the student begins, there is also a 30-day trial
period when the student or the library can back out if something
changes.

o Basically, the library is providing the opportunity to an interested patron
who wants to earn their high school diploma by covering the cost of the
education on a case-by-case basis. A student would apply through our
website, and the library has the option of whether to approve this student
for the program or not. Once they are enrolled, it is their responsibility to
complete the courses within a year and half. The student will consult their
Academic Coach if they need assistance with their schooling, librarians
are not responsible for any of the actual education or program
completion. The library covers the entire cost for the student which
averages $1,000 per student.

Programming / Outreach (Not entered in Communico)

Book a Librarian; 1 Puzzles: 1 Teen Volunteers: 4

Diana Abraham attended a WWEC meeting on 5/10.

Diana Abraham presented a storytime to an Agape preschool class on 5/12. 22
students in attendance.

Paul Dobersztyn and MaryKellie Marquez attended the city of Warrenville's Bike
Rodeo on 5/14. They interacted with 64 community members and discussed the
upcoming Summer Concerts, Summer Reading Challenge and Summer
programming.

Diana Abraham attended Jet Fest at Jefferson Preschool on 5/14, interacting
with 73 people at the event.

Julie Kurtis presented the WPLD Summer Reading Challenge to Bower Elementary
school on 5/18 promoting the upcoming challenge to 430 total students.

Diana Abraham visited Johnson Elementary's Headstart program and interested
with 38 total students.

Julie Kurtis presented the WPLD Summer Reading Challenge to Johnson Middle
school on 5/23 & 5/24 promoting the upcoming challenge to 475 total students.
All Public Services staff submitted Fall programming descriptions to Paul
Dobersztyn and Julie Kurtis to submit to marketing.

-68-



» Julie Kurtis refreshed Public Services on using Beanstack in preparation for the
upcoming Summer Reading Challenge.

* Julie Kurtis met with the manager at the Warrenville Starbucks to begin the
storytime at Starbucks in the Fall.

* Taylor Haring provided cross-training in Adult Services for Member Services
employee Jorge Arias on 5/17.

e Julie Kurtis provided cross-training in Youth Services for Member Services
employee Jorge Arias on 5/19.

Non SWAN InterLibrary Loan

ltem Requests Processed: 11; Materials Received: 14; Materials Lent: 10

-69-



12. MEMBER SERVICES REPORT
May 2022

Sandy Whitmer

Circulation Transaction Location

# of tfransactions

% of fransactions

Self Checkout* 6,822 53.34%
Enterprise catalog/mobile app (Renewals) 98 0.77%
Autorenewals 4,401 34.41%
Staff Assisted Checkout 1,469 11.48%
TOTAL TRANSACTIONS 12,790 100.00%

*Selfcheck Usage Details

# of transactions

% of transactions

Selfcheck 1 (Near Member Services Desk) 5,334 78.2%
Selfcheck 2 (Near Vending Machine) 1,488 21.8%
TOTAL TRANSACTIONS 6,822 100.00%

Department Highlights

Curbside
20 curbside orders were filled in May 2022.

Thank you to the Member Services Team!

This team continues to keep things running smoothly in the absence of a full-time

manager. They all completed their self-evaluations and self- identified some good goals
and learning opportunities for the upcoming year. They've had some great suggestions

and are assisting me with cleaning up files. I've enjoyed working with a few of them
when I'm covering for employees who are using PTO. I'm learning more about their

individual responsibilities and seeing what the overall workflow

at the desk.

-70-

{(and traffic patterns) are



12. MARKETING REPORT
May 2022 Kathy Gaydos

Activities
Summer Reading Matters (June-August)

* Approved final proof from printer.

* Reviewed all mail counts with printer.

» Distributed printed copies to staff, service desks and display holders with help
from Stephanie in Member Services (M.S.); communicated with staff to request
they review upcoming events to share info with public.

+ Distributed outside of library to: Reverend Williams for unofficial welcome wagon
and to residential complexes for display and/or inserts for perspective tenants.

* Wrote website article, updated website links and updated social media with
images of newsletter.

* Emailed the newsletter file to District 200 for their eSchoolbag.

Summer 2022 Library Events (June, July, August)
* Revised slides from designer and got input from Public Services (P.S.}; finalized,
filed and shared with P.S. for use in setting up Facebook event posts.
* Received flyers from designer; filed, printed and posted on slat walls and other
display areas, with help from Stephanie.
* Revised event listings in Communico before publish date; edited and/or added
images as needed.

Concerts on the Commons (June, July, August)

» Finalized bookmark with help from Paul, who approved and coordinated with
outside printer.

* Created flyer and poster for use in library; also sent link to flyer on our website for
use by City.

* Submitted request for concert info to appear on City's electronic sign.

* Requested specially sized image of Concert logo from designer for use in other
publicity.

Summer Reading Chalienge
¢ Extensively updated last year's summer reading webpage.
* Reviewed/edited and finalized three paper reading logs (youth, teen, adult)
from designer; posted on website and gave to P.S. for copying/distribution.
» Created flyers for display on slat wallls; revised Spanish flyer with updated
translation.

Spring 2022 Library Events
* llinois Library Presents May events: Edited Michelle Zauner marketing materials
and posts after change of date to June 30.
* ILP June events: customized Chef Kwame Onwuachi flyer and social media
materials.
» With Stephanie’s help, monitored event flyers for removal/addition to displays.

Content Articles (reviewed/edited for later use and/or posted on website/social media)
* Audiobook Month by Kyrie (initial review only).
* Mango Languages blurb by Paul (for June release).
e 1,000 Books before Kindergarten by Julie.

=-71-



Welcome Email Campaign to New Cardholders
New cardholders receive a series of five emails designed to introduce our catalog,
features, eMedia collections, databases and staff.

‘ Received Card Dates Emails Received Average Open
. Rate

March 16-31 1-5 51% final

April 1-15 1-5 45% final

| April 16-30 1-5 54% final

| May 1-15 1-3 56% in progress

DEl Committee
* Sought input from contacts on RAILS marketing list about statements/practices
their libraries have in place about DEI topics.

Outreach

* July 3rd parade: started creating float signs/decorations; provided more info and
asked staff again to volunteer for parade; asked trustees to participate;
submitted participation form to Friends and followed up to make sure it was
received; reviewed Gail's suggestions for candy purchases.

* Meet & Greet event at Preserve at Cantera (May 14) with Mary Thomas: brought
coffee, donuts, marketing brochures and giveaways; spoke with 35 people
about library resources; registered 21 new library cards at two-hour event.
Prepared “Go Box" with publicity pieces and giveaways tailored to the event.

» City of Warrenville Bike Rodeo (May 14): coordinated all details with the City's
Bicyclist and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC); prepared signage and “Go
Box" tailored to the event; prepared talking points for staff and announcements
for event's emcee; prepared tally sheet for statistics: reviewed plan and all
materials with Paul and MaryKellie, who staffed the event.

» Warrenville Park District Multicultural Festival {June 1 1): reviewed and gave input
to Kyrie on the signs/postcards she’s creating; reviewed Gail's ideas for sharing
AtoZ Food America recipes; started creating poster about recipes.

Continuing Education
* Novelist/Angela Hursh: Accessibility and EDI Marketing, via Zoom May 24.
One in five people live with a disability. This includes non-visible ones such as
learning disabilities, mental health or diabetes. A library's mission statement
should include DEI and accessibility. Policies should codify accessibility much
like other services such as circulation.

Admin
» Budget: reviewed all expenses for current fiscal year to make sure they are
accounted for and within budget.
» Evaluation: completed my self-evaluation and gave to Sandy.

Miscellaneous

» Created Memorial Day closing signs to display on entrance doors.

* Building Maintenance work “closed" signs...created and printed two versions of
sandwich boards for parking lot and Stafford Place entrances; created inside
signs for stairway, elevator and Stafford Place exit.

» Giveaway item...ordered tape measure to add to stock of giveaway items for
outreach events and to give to new cardholders.

* Reached out to library member Chrystal S. who had emailed Sandy with nice
comments about the library and staff; asked for permission to use her remarks
and name in eNews and other publicity.

-72-




» Saved various logo images as different file types for use in Communico.

» Started creating sandwich boards to publicize Summer Reading, Concerts and
our Catalog.

* Helped Gail size an image/insert for a new Discovery Pack.

* Located and re-filed some science kit images for use by MaryKellie for the
catalog.

* Helped Taylor with sizing for a table top sign she created.

¢ Discussed options with Diana and Kyrie for library card registrations at Storytimes
on the Go (Summeriakes and Cerny Park) this summer.

Website activities related to maintaining website such as creating, reviewing and
editing content; monitoring and responding fo issues. In May, | completely updated the
summer reading webpage.

eNews activities related to producing biweekly newsletters and welcome emails:
planning, writing, editing, proofreading content; selecting/sizing images; linking; testing
drafts; importing and monitoring contact lists; monitoring responses.

Social Media activities related to managing three social media platforms:

planning what events and resources are included; reviewing file photos or slides (take
and create as needed); scheduling; monitoring local agencies and other libraries:
responding to staff request for additional social media support; sharing public
comments posted on our platforms with staff: updating content tracking documents. In
May, gave Julie and Sylvia guidelines for which events (or not) to create Facebook
events and when to schedule them.

Meeting/Webinar Attendance

Management Team meeting—5/3/22 and 5/1 7/22

Library Board meeting—5/18/22

Novelist Zoom on Accessibility and EDI Marketing—5/24/22

Publicity Statistics

eNews (Constant Contact)
Subscribers: 5,573
Average open rate: 43%

Social Media
Facebook Followers: 1,325
Instagram Followers: 373

P
IF

Preserve at Cantera outreach May 14, 2022;

-73-



12. ACQUISITIONS & CATALOGING REPORT
May 2022 MaryKellie Marquez

Collection Maintenance:
632 items created
1,563 items discarded
80 items repaired

37 discs cleaned

Department Highlight: MaryKellie and Gail were treated to lunch with Sandy at Red
Robin where they went over their recent trainings-Reaching Forward, Gail and HR
Source's Evolving Manager Bootcamp, MaryKellie. MaryKellie and Paul represented the
library at the Warrenville Park District's Bike Rodeo on May 14t Residents were thrilled
that the Concerts in the Commons are coming back. Those that stopped by were
encouraged to register for the Summer Reading Program that kicks off June 1%, And the
orange bags were a huge hitl

MaryKellie held Gail's annual review on May 2¢t. Gail finished the Spring session at the
College of DuPage with an “"A" in both of her classes. MaryKellie volunteered to be
secretary for the RAILS Technical Services Networking Group by taking notes for
members. MaryKellie was the lead host of the May 12t Acquisitions and Cataloging
User Group. Despite some technical difficulties on SWAN's end, Vickie Totton and
MaryKellie made do, successfully getting through the meeting. Gail AND Jackie
purchased candy from Sam’s Club for the Independence Day Parade.

Trainings/Meetings: MaryKellie Marquez attended/participated in 11.25 hours of
trainings. She met on May 12t with Kathy Gaydos and Paul Dobersztyn to prepare for
the Bike Rodeo. MaryKellie attended a two-part webinar on Building Racial Equity &
Belonging into Your Board Culture that was presented by Traci O'Neal Ellis, JD, with
Candid Conversations Matter, LLC. It was very honest about not having members of
under-represented groups be members to be seat fillers. Library should have policies,
not just a statement, about being intentional in recruiting, retaining, and retention of
inclusive board members. MaryKellie attended the Management Team meetings on
May 3 and May 17h. She also attended the May 18" Board Meeting in person.
MaryKellie and Gail also had a Zoom session with Claudia Nickson from SWAN to go
over questions and concerns with BLUEcloud Cataloging.

Gail Smith completed 8.5 hours of trainings that included the ACUG meeting, viewing
the Ryan Dowd webinar on mental ilness. She learned that you don’t need “special
skills” when dealing with mentaily ill persons, rather do the basics very well. At Reaching
Forward, Gail attended a session about inciusive programming which she found useful
to assist with ideas for the Spanish committee.

-74-



12. IT DEPARTMENT REPORT
May 2022 Duncan Jones

Training/Meetings
» Fostering Tech-savvy Staff with Nick Tanzi Rail webinar.
* Mental liness (Part 2): Basic infroduction to mental illness webinar.
* Brute Force Wi-Fi Hacking video by David Bombal.
* 10 of the Craziest Cyberattacks Seen in the Wild and How You Can Avoid Them
KnowBe4 webinar.
* SWAN Member Meeting: 2022-03-24 Technology Update
» Met with Sandy for weekly check-in [3]

User Support
» Helped various staff with Teams, Excel, Outlook, suspicious emails, headphones,
projectors, program setup, and printers.
+ Helped patrons with his resume and job applications, as well as the EZ Scan
Station.
Set up an outreach kit for Mary and Kathy G, laptop, hotspot, etc.
Created documentation on sharing Team:s files for Paul.
Disabled login to accounts of departed staff members.
Moved documents from Jaime's laptop to the F drive and backed up bookmarks.
Created a password reset plan with Sandy for Member Services, reset passwords
and updated configurations.
Advised staff not to let patrons use their own paper in the printer.
» Reset the WorkFlows settings on the Youth Service desk PC.
» Swapped the DisplayPort cable on the Member Services PC to prevent the
monitor connection blinking out.
» Resolved video cutting out on the east HDM projector input.
Resolved audio coming from projectors rather than sound system in the meeting
room, and showed Paul how to adjust it.
Resolved backup issue with HYAC PC.
Investigated an update issue with domain controllers
Reset all Mobile Device Kindles for discard.
Troubleshooting OCLC server communication error.
Updated several staff laptops and PCs as well as the public laptops.
Updated various servers' operating systems.
Updated firmware of Wi-Fi access points.
Updated cloud backup agent on Backup server.
Upgraded test computer to a new Windows feature update.
Testing Windows feature update on machines performing different various
functions.
» Researched how to install a printer from the print server on the public computers
with regards to PaperCut.
* Investigated Avaya switch vuinerability.
» Short notice testing of failover to auxiliary network connection.
Created a Group Policy Object set to enable and disable Adobe Reader
updates.
Placed order with Mobile Beacon for free Hotspot upgrades/replacements.
Updated, labeled, and documented new replacement hotspots.
Prepared quick use guides and created a contents sheet for new hotspots.
Adjusted equipment replacement plan with new data. All public PCs are under
warranty until late 2023, so they'll not need replacing before then.

-75-



» Researched options for and purchased additional public computers.

* Inventoried and tested new public PCs and monitors.

» Researched, solicited quotes, and ordered monitors for additional public PCs and
staff upgrades.

» Solicited quotes for security software renewal.

+ Followed up on stale Spiceworks tickefs.

¢ Reviewed CFB documentation.

3 tickets opened, 6 tickets closed, 1 pending.

-76-



PRESIDENT'S REPORT
Next Meetings or Events (as of Wednesday, June 9, 2022)

Wednesday, June 15, 2022 at 7 pm
Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
Library Meeting Room

Sunday, July 3, 2022 - Library Closed

Sunday, July 3, 2022 - Parade
See attached handout (next page) for detais.
Please let Kathy Gaydos know by June 15 if you plan to participate.

Monday, July 4, 2022 - Library Closed

Wednesday, July 20, 2022 at 7pm
Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
Library Meeting Room

Board Development - Diversity, Equity, Inclusion

(from Director Whitmer)

MaryKellie Marquez is working with a staff committee to develop a DEl statement
for the library. We hope to bring the statement to the Board in the fall for
adoption. Because of her interest in this topic, MaryKellie recently viewed q two-
part series for non-profit boards called “Building Racial Equity and Belonging into
Your Board Culture.” Unfortunately, these sessions were not recorded, but the
handouts are full of thoughtful questions and activities that may be of interest to
the Board. We do not have the internal capacity to lead a full board discussion
of this topic, but | suggest the Board make this topic a priority in the next iteration
of the library’s strategic plan. If you are interested in receiving a copy of the
handouts, please let Sandy know.

June ILA Reporter

The June issue of the ILA Reporter is available to
download at www.ila.org/publications/ila-
reporter. This issue honors Jesse White, lilinois' first
African American Secretary of State. White was
elected to office in 1998, and subsequently
reelected in 2002, 2006, 2010, 2014, and 2018,
ultimately holding the record as the longest
serving Secretary of State in lllinois.

This issue also includes an interview with Rhone
Talsma, the recent Jeopardy! champion who
unseated Amy Schneider, the former 40-day
champion.

-717-



WY/

WARRENVILLE

FRIENDS OF THE 4TH
PARADE

Join library staff members to march in Warrenville’s 3" of July parade.
We’ll be marching alongside Gail’s decorated SUV, handing out candy
and carrying signs about library events and services.

Parade Theme: Superheroes and Warrenville-ans
Theme for our vehicle: Reading Is Your Superpower

Parade time: 6 pm
Gather time: 5-5:15 pm
(Staff members will arrive earlier to get started decorating and organizing supplies.)

Attire: Wear something red, white and/or blue, including hats, visors,
sunglasses, jewelry.

Family members are welcome.

More details will follow closer to the event. We’d like to know who is
participating by June 15, as each participant may have to sign an
individual waiver.

RSVP by June 15 to Kathy Gaydos: kathy@warrenville.com.

-78-



14. TREASURER’'S REPORT

The first distribution of 2021 property taxes ($228,102) was received in May. The second
distribution ($804,902) was received June 10. Several smaller distributions are expected
at the end of June and in July. Taxes received prior to July 1 are recorded as "deferred"
revenue on the financial report because the funds are intended for use in the next fiscal

year.

The funds received so far ($1,033,004) represent 51% of the $2,035,684 extended for the
2021 tax levy.

-79.



19. CLOSED SESSION (Personnel)

Pay increases for staff will be effective on June 27, 2022. This is the Board's opportunity
to discuss compensation for the Library Director for the new fiscal year.

During budget discussions in May, the Board suggested all staff be awarded a 4% cost
of living increase and up to 2% merit increase for a total possible pay increase of ¢%.

The Cover Sheet (next page) needs to be completed and signed by the trustees and

director. It will be attached to the director's evaluation which is already in her personnel
file.



Library Director Evaluation Cover Sheet

for Director’s Personnel File, attach to compiled evaluation form

Library Director Name

Date of Evaluation

This evaluation was shared and discussed with the Director at a closed session of the Library
Board of Trustees Meeting.

The following changes to the Director’s Compensation were approved:

Effective

Board President Signature

Board Vice President Signature

Board Secretary Signature

Board Treasurer Signature

Trustee Signature

Trustee Signature

Trustee Signature

Library Director Signature

Library Director Comments:

Page 10f 1

-81-



